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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning.

          3  I'm James Gennaro, Chair of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Environmental Protection. Welcome to

          5  today's hearing titled "Rising Water: What Can The

          6  DEP Do About Flooding?"

          7                 Over the spring and summer of this

          8  year, the City got really pounded by several major

          9  storms, and those storms just caused an incredible

         10  amount of damage. It shut down the subways, as we

         11  all know, in places like my district, flooded

         12  people's homes, destroying their most prized

         13  possessions.

         14                 Sewers backed up into people's homes,

         15  cars got washed away, and I could go on and on. If

         16  anyone here toured Queens after the July 18th or

         17  August 8th floods, then you know what a total

         18  disaster those storms were.

         19                 But don't take my word for it. Here

         20  is what Barbara Lynch from FEMA said after the

         21  August 8th storm. "When we saw the damage in Queens,

         22  we were shocked." And that's the Federal Emergency

         23  Management Administration, and as we know they're

         24  used to seeing major damage. If the size of these

         25  storms surprised us, then a rare spring Nor'easter
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          2  in April dropped seven and a half inches of rain in

          3  one day, the second most rainfall in the City ever

          4  in one day, and the August 8th storm surpassed

          5  one-day totals for rainfall for that day by quite a

          6  bit, the flooding in Queens did not surprise us.

          7                 I will not review the history of

          8  flooding in Queens at this time, although I suspect

          9  it will come up a few times here today. I will just

         10  say that we continue to have a major flooding

         11  problem that is costing us billions of dollars, and

         12  even bigger costs from suffering and watching the

         13  things we love most, our homes, our possessions, our

         14  family photographs, are sense of safety and

         15  well-being, washed away and ruined and destroyed.

         16                 Once again, I won't take everyone's

         17  time here getting into the details of why this

         18  flooding happened, whether it's poor sewerage

         19  infrastructure and a lack of investment in

         20  infrastructure, rising watertables, impacts from

         21  development, global warming, or all of these and

         22  more in combination, although, again, I think these

         23  matters will arise in today's testimony.

         24                 Today I'm here to look at the

         25  leadership of DEP in the eye and ask them point
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          2  blank, what can you do to solve the problem of

          3  flooding in Queens, and I expect straight answers,

          4  and I know I'll get them, about what the problems

          5  are, what the solutions are, what the costs are to

          6  fix this and where the money is going to come from,

          7  as well as what DEP may not know and what DEP cannot

          8  do.

          9                 I want frankness, above all else, and

         10  as I said, I know I'll get that. I want a road

         11  forward that leads to solutions, because to be

         12  perfectly blunt, the situation as it stands, as we

         13  all know, is not acceptable to the people of Queens

         14  or the people of the City, to me or to anyone else.

         15  I will not let the status quo stand, and I know

         16  you're not happy with the status quo either.

         17                 So, without further ado, we'll get

         18  the hearing underway. I'd like to thank DEP, who

         19  usually is our first witness at our hearing, by

         20  yielding to Assemblyman Rory Lancman, who has a

         21  severe tight timetable today. We're also joined by

         22  Helen Marshall, who is in the room, a former member

         23  of this Committee.

         24                 Thank you for being here, Helen.

         25                 And many other prestigious witnesses.
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          2                 So, without further ado, I'd like to

          3  call upon Assemblyman Lancman, who has been a great

          4  champion with regard to this issue, working very

          5  closely with the people, sending out postcards so

          6  people could identify who had problems, who didn't,

          7  creating a map, if you will, for DEP, which is going

          8  to provide some I think much-needed data.

          9                 So, Rory, you've been a real champion

         10  on this issue. We're very happy that you took time

         11  from your day to be here at our little hearing

         12  today. And first of all, thank you for being here.

         13  We'd like you to state your name for the record and

         14  proceed with your good testimony.

         15                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCMAN: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman. My name is Rory Lancman, and I am a

         17  member of the Assembly representing the 25th

         18  District in Queens. I appreciate your indulgence in

         19  letting me go first today. I have to meet some

         20  students from our district, Solomon Schechter School

         21  (phonetic), who are going to be protesting at the UN

         22  President Amadini Jad's (phonetic) visit. And if I

         23  don't get there to protest, who is going to speak

         24  out against him.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was there
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          2  yesterday, and give all of the kids from Solomon

          3  Schechter my best.

          4                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCMAN: I will.

          5                 Thank you very much for conducting

          6  this hearing into the widespread failure of our

          7  sewer system during the summer storms. My district,

          8  the Northeast Queens, our district, was particularly

          9  hard hit, and I am grateful for this opportunity to

         10  offer testimony today.

         11                 As for my Councilman, Mr. Chairman. I

         12  know how hard you have worked in our community to

         13  assist those homes, businesses and property that

         14  were damaged by the storms, and on behalf of our

         15  entire community, let me publicly thank you for your

         16  leadership on this issue.

         17                 There is a saying that everyone

         18  complains about the weather but no one actually does

         19  anything about it. And while it's true we can't do

         20  anything about the weather, we can and must do

         21  something about the weather's effect on our sewer

         22  system, and I am confident that this Committee has

         23  the experience and determination to offer concrete

         24  plans for doing just that.

         25                 There are at least four areas which I
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          2  believe deserve the Committee's attention, but

          3  before I enumerate them, let me make sure we all

          4  understand what we are talking about here.

          5  Homeowners waking up to raw sewage in their

          6  basements, mine included by the way, a more

          7  disgusting experience I have never known.

          8                 Cars submerged in flooded streets,

          9  commuters stranded as heavy rains freezed the main

         10  subway lines in Queens. Not what you would expect

         11  living in the self-proclaimed capital of the world.

         12                 First, I look forward to the

         13  testimony the Committee elicits on planned

         14  improvements to our basic sewer system

         15  infrastructure. Our current combined sewer system is

         16  clearly inadequate to meet our current needs.

         17                 More shocking, the City's growth

         18  planning seems to pretend our sewer system doesn't

         19  need to grow as well.

         20                 As you and I know from our work

         21  opposing the Jamaica Rezoning Plan, Mr. Chairman,

         22  the City plans massive development along Hillside

         23  Avenue, in our overlapping districts. Even though

         24  the catchbasins along Hillside Avenue don't connect

         25  to any drainage system.
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          2                 The secondary of interest is how the

          3  system we have is maintained. On Friday, for

          4  example, a constituent showed me a catch-basin that

          5  is still full of water from rains which occurred

          6  weeks ago, a system driven by ad hoc citizen

          7  complaints, which at best guaranteed the catchbasins

          8  are cleaned only at least once every three years is

          9  no system at all.

         10                 Third, while I urge the Committee to

         11  not miss the forest for the trees in search of

         12  finding systematic answers, please don't forget the

         13  trees. The individual home owners, not-for-profit

         14  institutions and businesses who have suffered real

         15  losses.

         16                 Many of our constituents have filed a

         17  notice of claim with the City for property damages

         18  suffered as a result of the City's failure to plan

         19  for and adequately maintain its sewer system, and I

         20  am very interested in hearing the City's views on

         21  compensating individuals for their losses.

         22                 In that vain, I also want to bring to

         23  the Committee's attention legislation which Senator

         24  Toby Stavisky and I will be introducing in Albany to

         25  provide homeowners and non-profits tax credits to
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          2  enable them to install sewer line check valves, a

          3  device which would prevent sewage from flowing back

          4  into one's basement when the sewer system is over

          5  capacity.

          6                 Also, New York City will have the

          7  opportunity to apply for disaster mitigation funds

          8  from FEMA, and we urge the City to apply for funding

          9  to help homeowners pay for the installation of check

         10  valves to prevent future disasters.

         11                 Fourth, I think a frank discussion is

         12  in order on whether our water and sewer taxes are

         13  really being spent to develop and maintain our sewer

         14  system. As you know, Mr. Chairman, and as you were

         15  one of the first to point out, more and more of our

         16  water and sewer taxes are going into the City's

         17  General Fund and not toward developing and

         18  maintaining our sewer system. This is unacceptable.

         19                 Finally, let me say I have found the

         20  Department of Environmental Protection staff to be

         21  responsive to my concerns and questions. And they

         22  were at my office to meet with civic leaders and

         23  answer questions within days of being asked. The

         24  problem is not the people at DEP, as far as I can

         25  see, but the system itself, including its original

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  design, it's funding, and the City's lack of

          3  planning.

          4                 Mr. Chairman, thank you for the

          5  opportunity to testify, and rest assured that as a

          6  member of the Assembly Standing Committee on Cities,

          7  I am available to work with you in any way I can to

          8  support your conclusions for averting future

          9  disasters, such as the one experienced by our

         10  constituents this summer.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Rory.

         12  I know that I can count on your partnership, and I

         13  appreciate the way we worked together on this issue

         14  and I thank you for being here. And some of your --

         15  I was making notes during your testimony, some of

         16  those will form the basis of pointed questions to

         17  the Administration. So, you've already helped us

         18  here today, and I appreciate that very much.

         19                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCMAN: Thank you

         20  very much for the opportunity to testify.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         23  I have a question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Assemblyman, these check valves you talked about,

          3  how much do they cost?

          4                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCMAN: Depending on

          5  the configuration of one's basement, they can cost

          6  anywhere from 2,500 to 4,500 dollars. Legislation

          7  that Senator Stavisky and I are proposing would

          8  offer a 50 percent tax credit off home owners

          9  property taxes up to $2,000.

         10                 On Friday, Councilman Gennaro and I

         11  and Senator Stavisky had a press conference outside

         12  the home of constituents of ours who were looking

         13  into and probably will be purchasing and installing

         14  these check valves, but the cost is prohibitive.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         16                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCMAN: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         18                 We're joined by Council Member Eugene

         19  and Council Member Koppell. Other members of the

         20  Committee will be coming by from time to time. It's

         21  quite a complicated schedule we have. There are a

         22  few hearings going on right now at the Council so

         23  there are a lot of members that need to be multiple

         24  places.

         25                 Our next witness is Emily Lloyd.
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          2  Emily Lloyd from DEP, of course.

          3                 So, we have Commissioner Emily Lloyd

          4  and Deputy Commissioner James Roberts. A pleasure to

          5  have you both. We appreciate your being with us

          6  today.  We appreciate your sensitivity to this

          7  problem. I had a late afternoon conversation with

          8  your staff when they were putting together materials

          9  for the hearing. I know your staff worked very hard

         10  on this hearing and I do appreciate that.

         11                 So, without further ado,

         12  Commissioner, I invite you and Deputy Commissioner

         13  Roberts to state your names for the record and

         14  proceed with your testimony.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman, and members of the Committee. In addition

         17  to Deputy Commissioner Jim Roberts, I have with me

         18  today First Deputy Commissioner Steve Lawitts, and

         19  Deputy Commissioners Angela Licata, Doug Greeley and

         20  Ann Canty, so that we would be able to, I hope,

         21  address questions that come up as effectively as

         22  possible.

         23                 Chairman Gennaro and members of this

         24  Committee, I am Emily Lloyd, Commissioner of the New

         25  York City Department of Environmental Protection.
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          2  Thank you for the opportunity to testify today

          3  regarding the flooding in New York City.

          4                 Flooding from the three storms this

          5  year has been severe and we share the great concern

          6  of elected representatives and residents about the

          7  effects of that and what it portends for the future.

          8                 This morning I would like to first

          9  put our recent weather and the resulting flooding in

         10  the context of climate change as we currently

         11  understand it and tell you how we are incorporating

         12  research on climate change into our plan. Then I'll

         13  give a little background on New York City's drainage

         14  systems; how we currently analyze, assess and

         15  diagnose our existing systems; specific problems and

         16  issues in Queens and elsewhere in the City; what we

         17  are and will be doing to enhance and change our

         18  operations and infrastructure through PlaNYC

         19  implementation; how multiple City agencies are

         20  working together to a task force convened by the

         21  Bloomberg Administration to create an action plan

         22  for addressing flood mitigation; how we think we can

         23  be helpful in response to homeowners' requests for

         24  assistance in preparing for possible future storms;

         25  how we are developing and implementing best
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          2  management practices and current conditions, as well

          3  as plan for new ones; and finally, highlights of

          4  what we expect to accomplish in the immediate, near

          5  and long terms.

          6                 This hearing closely follows the

          7  extremely severe rainstorm of August 8th and the one

          8  on July 18th, but we also had a very wet summer

          9  overall. The weather records at Central Park for the

         10  most recent 39 years indicate a median summer

         11  rainfall of approximately 12 inches. The total

         12  rainfall at that station for the summer of 2007 was

         13  20.63 inches, which was the fourth wettest in the

         14  39-year record. Before that, the Nor'easter of April

         15  15th, as you mentioned, brought 7.57 inches of rain

         16  in Central Park, the second heaviest rainfall in 24

         17  hours since recordkeeping began in 1869, and

         18  approximately 15 inches according to unofficial rain

         19  gauges in Staten Island, the borough where the

         20  effects of this storm were most dramatic.

         21                 Historically flood-prone areas of the

         22  City include parts of Queens, Staten Island, the

         23  Bronx and Brooklyn, but in recent years, flooding

         24  has affected a much broader range of communities

         25  than ever before.
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          2                 New York City is not alone in facing

          3  the challenge of increased flooding. This summer,

          4  severe flooding has hit regions throughout the

          5  world. We saw this while Hurricane Dean was

          6  affecting the Yucatan Peninsula and the Gulf of

          7  Mexico, and Tropical Storm Erin was affecting

          8  Oklahoma and Texas, a persistent storm hung over the

          9  Midwest for several days, causing repeated flash

         10  flooding in Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Minnesota, Ohio

         11  and Wisconsin.

         12                 In June and July of this year,

         13  widespread flooding occurred throughout the United

         14  Kingdom, including Northern Ireland, East Yorkshire,

         15  the Midlands and South Wales. Rainfall across

         16  Britain was more than double the average at 5.5

         17  inches for June, with some areas receiving a month's

         18  worth of precipitation in 24 hours. Climate

         19  scientists are predicting such extreme weather

         20  events may become more frequent in the future.

         21                 To prepare for this possibility, and

         22  in accordance with PlaNYC, Mayor Bloomberg's plan

         23  for a sustainable city, DEP has begun to develop and

         24  implement programmatic adaptations that address

         25  global climate change and its projected impacts on
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          2  New York City's drinking water delivery, stormwater

          3  management and wastewater treatment systems.

          4                 Modeling projections performed for

          5  DEP by the Columbia University Center for Climate

          6  Systems Research and the NASA Goddard Institute for

          7  Space Studies at Columbia University indicate that

          8  by the 2080s, the most probable amounts of change in

          9  New York City and its watershed region are a 7.5 to

         10  8 degree Fahrenheit increase in temperature, and 7.5

         11  to 10 percent increase in precipitation, an a 15.7

         12  to 17.7 inch rise in sea level.

         13                 These very long-term models help to

         14  show the trends, but now we are focused on trying to

         15  -- I'm sorry, this is repetitive -- now we are

         16  focused on trying to focus the modeling on a nearer

         17  time horizon and more precise geography. DEP

         18  anticipates releasing our initial climate adaptation

         19  report, "Taking Action: The New York City Department

         20  of Environmental Protection Climate Change Program,"

         21  in October of this year.

         22                 On an agency-wide level, DEP will

         23  closely analyze climate change projections and

         24  consider them during the planning, engineering and

         25  design processes to develop adaptation strategies
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          2  that increase the resiliency of the drainage system

          3  to existing flooding and future climate changes.

          4  There are several strategies that we will evaluate

          5  and utilize to do this. One of them will be the

          6  implementation of sustainable, on-site storm water

          7  management systems to lessen the likely impacts on

          8  DEP infrastructure. One of the most pragmatic and

          9  sustainable is to use techniques called "best

         10  management practices" to reverse or compensate for

         11  some of the dramatic loss of green space to detain

         12  storm water.

         13                 Events like August 8th show us that

         14  we have to take action before climatic change

         15  predictions area as certain or precise as we would

         16  prefer.

         17                 To put the August 8th storm in

         18  perspective, National Weather Service gauges in the

         19  metropolitan area measured up to 3.3 inches of rain

         20  within a two-hour period. DEP's rain gauge in Bay

         21  Ridge measured a peak 5-minute intensity at the rate

         22  of nearly 4.5 inches per hour.

         23                 On July 18th, gauges in Northern

         24  Queens measured 2.67 inches. Average rainfall in New

         25  York City has measured 9.9 -- has increased 9.9
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          2  percent, or over four inches per year in the last

          3  100 years. But the more important issue is the

          4  potential for increasing frequency of intense storms

          5  that delivered tremendous amount of rain in short

          6  periods of time.

          7                 Even so, events like August 8th are

          8  currently expected to remain highly unusual. That is

          9  why we are focusing our managing stormwater as part

         10  of the solution, rather than building sewers to

         11  manage the worst storm.

         12                 If transportation engineers built the

         13  roadways into and within Manhattan to accommodate

         14  the worst traffic days before the Christmas

         15  holidays, roads would use up the space for sidewalks

         16  or even buildings.

         17                 Instead, they design for the traffic

         18  expected on most days, trying to spread the daily

         19  peak and make special plans for traffic management

         20  on gridlock days.

         21                 New York City's sewer system was

         22  similarly designed not to prevent all possible

         23  flooding, but to keep it infrequent. However,

         24  climate change is challenging old assumptions about

         25  what's required to keep disruption infrequent.
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          2                 The City's drainage and sewer system

          3  consists of over 6,600 miles of pipes, the majority

          4  of which were laid before 1950. In areas of the City

          5  developed prior to 1960, such as much of Northern

          6  Queens, sewers were designed to handle up to 1.5

          7  inches of rain per hour, and areas developed since

          8  1960, sewers have been built to handle 1.75 inches

          9  or rain per hour, which is the current national

         10  design standard for sewers, intended to handle the

         11  so-called five-year storm. Engineers developed this

         12  standard based on precipitation records over the

         13  past 100 years. A five-year storm means a storm of a

         14  duration and intensity that is expected, based on

         15  probability on an average of once every five years.

         16                 But over the past 12 years, five-year

         17  storms have occurred on an average of every three

         18  years, so these designations are becoming less

         19  helpful.

         20                 Flooding happens in several ways.

         21  With a very intense storm, rainwater scours the

         22  street like a firehose, pushing every leaf, gum

         23  wrapper and restaurant menu down the street and on

         24  to the catchbasin grates where the debris molds

         25  itself onto the grate like a mat. The debris can
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          2  block the grate so successfully that water will not

          3  enter the storm sewers, and instead starts to pond

          4  up around the basin, creating street flooding even

          5  before the sewer is full. When the sheer volume of

          6  sewer water and wastewater entering the system fills

          7  the sewers, excess water is unable to enter the

          8  sewer. This condition is described as the sewer

          9  being surcharged. A surcharged sewer will not accept

         10  the additional flow, so if a rainstorm continues

         11  after the point when the sewer becomes surcharged,

         12  that rainwater will remain above ground. Unless the

         13  excess water is absorbed by green spaces, or

         14  channeled by curbs and conveyed overland to some

         15  body of water, the excess water creates street

         16  flooding that can flow off the street and into

         17  below-grade areas, such as driveways, patios and

         18  basements.

         19                 Surcharged sewers can also cause

         20  sewer back-ups in homes and other buildings. Sewer

         21  back-ups occur when the level of sewer water is

         22  elevated to the level of below-grade fixtures. As

         23  the water seeks its own level, it will rise through

         24  the fixtures unless there are check valves in place.

         25  Finally, and fortunately rarely, when a surcharged
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          2  combined sewer encounters a bottleneck or a

          3  counter-flow, the internal pressure in the sewer may

          4  become so great that it will push up through the

          5  catch basins and manholes.

          6                 In DEP's day-to-day operations, we

          7  seek to keep our system functioning and to improve

          8  its function in two ways: We clean and maintain our

          9  sewer and drainage systems to keep them in a state

         10  of good repair; and we plan and build both

         11  traditional infrastructure and BMPs for managing

         12  storm and wastewater.

         13                 To maintain New York City's elaborate

         14  system of sewers, DEP relies on a workforce of

         15  laborers, supervisors and engineers who design and

         16  carry out a sewer maintenance program.

         17                 Sewer maintenance includes a wide

         18  variety of tasks, such as: cleaning catchbasins;

         19  performing high-powered flushing of sewers;

         20  degreasing, inspecting sewers in person or with

         21  cameras; removing sewer debris; and excavating

         22  streets to repair broken sewers.

         23                 Often problems are isolated

         24  situations that are readily solved with these

         25  methods. However, some problems, though seemingly
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          2  localized, can indicate that a maintenance solution

          3  or a capital project to improve sewer infrastructure

          4  miles from the problem may be necessary. Solutions

          5  such as this may require analysis and study and

          6  design before correct solutions can be identified

          7  and implemented.

          8                 Some of our sewer maintenance

          9  activities are pro-active. For example, we have a

         10  program of thoroughly inspecting all of the City's

         11  120,000 catchbasins every three years. After the

         12  inspection, we clean the catchbasin top to bottom

         13  and rebuild it, or any piece of it, as needed. Other

         14  sewer maintenance activities are responsive.

         15                 For example, we also clean

         16  catchbasins where citizens, via 3-1-1, tell us that

         17  a catchbasin is clogged or dirty. Because of the

         18  size of our system, we are not able to physically

         19  inspect all of its segments as frequently as we

         20  would like.

         21                 However, the public and 3-1-1 allow

         22  us to pinpoint areas that need more frequent

         23  attention by reporting dirty catchbasins or sewer

         24  back-ups.

         25                 This complaint-driven process results
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          2  in the inspection of nearly 80 miles of sewer lines

          3  annually by physical walkthrough or TV technology.

          4                 In addition, we have two major

          5  technological initiatives underway which we expect

          6  to greatly enhance our maintenance capabilities.

          7  First, we are currently overhauling our customer

          8  complaint and work order system so that it can

          9  provide more and better information to our field

         10  forces, making them more efficient.

         11                 Second, we expect to complete a

         12  comprehensive sewer mapping project in the next 12

         13  months. Taken together, these two initiatives will

         14  improve our ability to clean and repair sewers and

         15  improve our ability to identify locations in the

         16  drainage system that require more extensive

         17  reconstruction and modification.

         18                 In view of the importance of New York

         19  City's drainage system, last spring the Bloomberg

         20  Administration proposed, and the City Council

         21  approved, an increase of approximately $500 million

         22  in the capital budget for the replacement or

         23  installation of sewers. In the 11-year period

         24  between Fiscal '07 and Fiscal '17, DEP projects

         25  spending $2.8 billion on building or rebuilding our
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          2  sewer system.

          3                 I should remind members that the

          4  entire capital budget for the water and sewer system

          5  is supported by fees paid by property owners for

          6  water and sewer service. Because 10 percent of

          7  property owners choose not to pay their water and

          8  sewer bills, the revenue available to provide for

          9  sewer projects, among other things, is substantially

         10  reduced. This year, with no residential lien sale to

         11  back up our collection efforts, the shortfall has

         12  increased significantly.

         13                 Though flooding on August 8th

         14  occurred in sections throughout all boroughs of the

         15  City, and getting to work was difficult or

         16  impossible for many New Yorkers, Queens suffered the

         17  most widespread flooding and sewer back-ups.

         18                 There are a number of factors that

         19  make parts of Queens more susceptible to flooding

         20  than other boroughs. These areas are mostly low

         21  lying or in neighborhoods with no storm sewers,

         22  features that create a vulnerability to flooding,

         23  which is now compounded by rainfall conditions that

         24  seem to be getting worse.

         25                 Moreover, increased building has
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          2  brought with it more pavement and less green space

          3  to absorb rain, so that stormwater runoff from

          4  low-density lots has increased by nearly 50 percent

          5  since 1950. Southeast Queens has suffered for years

          6  from increased flooding exacerbated by a rising

          7  water table.

          8                 Some of these flood-prone areas, such

          9  as Elmhurst, Springfield Gardens and Brookville, are

         10  also areas that have experienced 75 percent greater

         11  population increases than average for the City since

         12  1950, when much of the sewer system was designed,

         13  and the need for wastewater or stormwater capacity

         14  was much less, because of so much open space.

         15                 Another issue that has arisen in

         16  Queens is the Jamaica rezoning. As residents know

         17  well, parts of the rezoning area are prone to

         18  residential and roadway flooding during heavy rains

         19  due to a rising water table and an incomplete

         20  drainable structure.

         21                 Jamaica is one of many communities in

         22  southeast Queens experiencing similar difficulties.

         23  To improve drainage in the area, so that we can both

         24  reduce existing problems and allow new construction

         25  to occur, DEP has accelerated the completion of a
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          2  comprehensive drainage plan by moving it up on the

          3  design schedule and then making the construction

          4  necessary to serve this area a priority.

          5                 Our goal is to complete the entire

          6  corridor from the Jamaica industrial area running

          7  south toward Baisley Pond in 10 to 20 years.

          8                 In fact, completing the drainage

          9  infrastructure for southeastern Queens accounts for

         10  more than one-third of the Department's Citywide

         11  10-year capital plan for sewers.

         12                 However, because of the size of the

         13  area being upgraded and the nature of the

         14  construction, this work will require decades to

         15  complete even with this significant expenditure.

         16                 Completing the drainage

         17  infrastructure in southeastern Queens is an

         18  important part of solving the problems of sewer

         19  back-ups and surface flooding. Drawing down the

         20  water table is also part of the solution. At one

         21  point, in the 1970s, the wells in southeastern

         22  Queens, owned by the Jamaica Water Supply Company,

         23  were pumping approximately 60 million gallons per

         24  day. By early 2000, DEP no longer utilized those

         25  wells. Pumping and treatment costs and the desire
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          2  for water from the Upstate reservoirs were the key

          3  factors behind the change.

          4                 The ground water table has risen as

          5  much as 30 feet in some areas in South Jamaica. As

          6  the ground water table rises, it infiltrates our

          7  sewers, reducing capacity and flooding some

          8  basements of buildings in the area.

          9                 This is a critical companion piece to

         10  the build-out of storm sewers and we consider it an

         11  equally high priority.

         12                 Among other things, we plan to

         13  recommence the Station 6 project. Station 6 is one

         14  of the wells of the old Jamaica Water Supply System

         15  and it is the location for a drinking water

         16  treatment plant that will produce 7 to 10 mgd of

         17  high quality drinking water from the groundwater

         18  system. It will also have the effect of lowering the

         19  ground water table.

         20                 While DEP continues its long-term

         21  capital program to complete the drainage system

         22  serving southeastern Queens, we understand that the

         23  Jamaica community is concerned that near-term

         24  construction in the rezoned area will exacerbate

         25  existing deficiencies in the drainage system.
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          2                 However, safeguards have been put in

          3  place to protect existing neighborhoods and their

          4  residents.

          5                 DEP and the Department of Buildings

          6  are jointly implementing a system whereby all new

          7  development in the rezoned area would need approval

          8  of drainage plans by DEP. This will enable DEP to

          9  require responsible and necessary stormwater and

         10  wastewater management to minimize the impact of

         11  growth on the infrastructure, while we continue to

         12  upgrade the drainage system. This would also allow

         13  DEP to monitor the exact distribution and nature of

         14  the growth in order to prioritize infrastructure

         15  needs most effectively.

         16                 More specifically, DEP is working

         17  with the Departments of City Planning and Buildings

         18  to identify sites within the project area that are

         19  likely to be built.

         20                 In areas of projected growth, DEP is

         21  already undertaking a thorough analysis and

         22  inspection of the existing drainage infrastructure

         23  so that by the time builders apply to connect to our

         24  system, we will be able to predict the ability of

         25  the system to handle that particular additional
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          2  flow.

          3                 If DEP engineering staff members

          4  believe that a particular proposal to connect to our

          5  system would, if approved, increase sewer back-ups

          6  or cause other service issues, DEP will direct the

          7  applicant to modify the proposal as necessary.

          8                 Development sites with existing

          9  impervious surfaces may also present an opportunity

         10  for the implementation of BMPs, as described in

         11  Mayor Bloomberg's PlaNYC.

         12                 DEP is also exploring the application

         13  of Best Management Practices for stormwater

         14  management.

         15                 Additionally, DEP Operations will

         16  continue to monitor conditions in the area and

         17  perform intensive cleaning of the sewer system to

         18  maintain maximum capacity. The August 8th storm

         19  brought severe flooding to areas that had not

         20  experienced flooding before, or only occasionally,

         21  as well as Southeast Queens.

         22                 The basic causes are the same, but

         23  the effect was different. Whereas water tends to

         24  pool in the flat parts of Southeast Queens, the

         25  swath of flooding farther north on August 8th
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          2  brought large quantities of water into hilly areas

          3  where streets became conduits for fast moving flash

          4  floods, and low-lying areas became holding basins

          5  with no place to drain.

          6                 In recognition of the need for an

          7  immediate and coordinated response to worsening

          8  flooding, the Mayor's Office of Operations has

          9  convened a multi-agency Flood Mitigation Task Force

         10  for a period of six months.

         11                 The Task Force, which met for the

         12  first time this past Friday, will develop a

         13  comprehensive Citywide plan to address flood

         14  mitigation and propose and implement immediate and

         15  near and long-term recommendations.

         16                 The group includes, in addition to

         17  representatives from the Office of Operations and

         18  DEP, the Department of Transportation, the

         19  Department of Buildings, the Department of Parks and

         20  Recreation, the Department of Design and

         21  Construction, the Office of Emergency Management,

         22  the Community Assistance Unit, and the Office of

         23  Long-Term Planning and Sustainability. We will also

         24  be requesting participation from the Department of

         25  Sanitation and the Department of Information
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          2  Technology, as 3-1-1 plays a critical role in

          3  identifying problem spots for immediate response,

          4  and in communicating with the public.

          5                 Among the first tasks of the Task

          6  Force will be to develop an emergency flood response

          7  plan, drawing on existing hurricane response plans,

          8  an outreach and education plan to highlight measures

          9  that would lessen the impact of flooding on

         10  individual homeowners, and development of a flooding

         11  hotspot mitigation plan, drawing on the resources

         12  and expertise of all task force agencies.

         13                 Within 30 days, the Task Force will

         14  develop draft plans for addressing the first two

         15  tasks, with final plans ready in 90 days.

         16                 The hot spots draft plan will be

         17  ready in 90 days with a final plan in 120 days. The

         18  Task Force will focus its work on in-depth

         19  investigation of the types of problems identified in

         20  Queens, and from that develop solutions that are

         21  applicable and effective not only for Queens but

         22  throughout the City. It will also assist

         23  participating agencies in integrating practical

         24  solutions, such as discrete operational changes,

         25  such as street grading and street sweeping, with
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          2  capital project priorities.

          3                 As the Task Force will be developing

          4  coordinated, Citywide plans, DEP will continue to

          5  develop and implement its immediate, near, and

          6  long-term action plan.

          7                 We will enhance our inspection

          8  program to include increased physical inspections in

          9  flood-prone areas and implement flow-monitoring

         10  studies throughout the Queens sewer system.

         11                 We will measure sewer flows for a

         12  year to better understand the causes of the problems

         13  and assess where infrastructure should be altered.

         14  We will also increase inspection of trunk sewers to

         15  minimize systemic problems that might contribute to

         16  localized flooding.

         17                 Finally, our enhanced sewer and

         18  catchbasin cleaning program will include more

         19  targeted clean-up of flood-prone locations and

         20  closer coordination with the Department of

         21  Sanitation on problem areas.

         22                 DEP with Task Force members will be

         23  organizing outreach events to disseminate this

         24  information. Home and building owners can help

         25  prevent sewer back-ups by installing check valves,
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          2  as the Assembly Member mentioned, or ejector pumps,

          3  sump pumps, for basement plumbing fixtures.

          4                 In many cases, homeowners are not

          5  aware that these are required under the Building

          6  Code to prevent sewer back-ups. Large buildings can

          7  suffer SBUs independent of the City's sewer system

          8  because they are fitted with combined sanitary and

          9  storm drains. These can be separated to prevent

         10  SBUs.

         11                 In addition to the above strategies,

         12  we will be analyzing the way wastewater and

         13  stormwater drain in order to determine where

         14  high-level storm sewers would effectively attenuate

         15  flooding.

         16                 High level storm sewers are a way to

         17  alleviate pressure on the combined sewer system and

         18  limit CSO events.

         19                 High level storm sewers are designed

         20  to capture 50 percent of the rainfall before it

         21  enters our combined pipes and divert it directly

         22  into the waterways through permitted outlets,

         23  thereby reducing the volume of flows that pass

         24  through the combined sewer system and the treatment

         25  plans. In addition, they alleviate street flooding
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          2  in problematic areas.

          3                 We will also install new catchbasins

          4  where feasible to increase intake, and work with DOT

          5  to change street grades, build up sidewalks or build

          6  berms to channel the flow of water on the street.

          7                 As mentioned before, in addition to

          8  continuing with our capital program of sewer

          9  infrastructure build-outs, we will be developing and

         10  implementing best management practices, which are

         11  techniques to reduce the amount of rainwater

         12  entering the sewer system during wet weather. BMPs

         13  can reduce pressure on the sewers by containing

         14  stormwater runoff or slowing its flow.

         15                 Where there is sufficient open space

         16  near naturally occurring watercourses in the City,

         17  it is possible to implement an array of BMPs,

         18  collectively known as Bluebelts, which drain built

         19  areas into undeveloped areas, thereby serving as

         20  natural storm drainage. The Bluebelt program is

         21  designed to utilize and leverage natural drainage

         22  corridors, including streams, ponds and other

         23  wetland areas to convey, treat and detain stormwater

         24  prior to its release into the harbor.

         25                 Using the Bluebelt approach to
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          2  enhance these natural functions, DEP has enhanced

          3  the natural environment to become a more effective

          4  holding tank; reengineering the wetland in the shape

          5  of a snake to slow down water flow, planting

          6  vegetation to absorb and filter impurities out of

          7  the water system, and positioning rock so that the

          8  water bubbles over it, thereby adding air into the

          9  stream.

         10                 There are three locations in Queens

         11  where we will implement BlueBelt strategies. In

         12  Udalls' Cove and Brookville Boulevard West, we will

         13  install basins to catch stormwater from the

         14  surrounding neighborhoods in Queens before it

         15  travels into Littleneck Bay and Jamaica Bay. We will

         16  dredge 3.5-acre Springfield Lake, located within

         17  Springfield Park in Southeast Queens, and enhance it

         18  with new tidal marshes and other drainage-related

         19  improvements.

         20                 This will solve ongoing flooding

         21  problems, while decreasing algae blooms in the lake

         22  and improving water quality in Jamaica Bay.

         23                 At Baisley Pond, a 40-acre freshwater

         24  pond in south Jamaica, we will alleviate flooding

         25  problems and improve groundwater conditions by
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          2  incorporating natural water retention and filtering

          3  strategies.

          4                 Bluebelt techniques are difficult to

          5  implement in areas where there is a lack of

          6  available land in proximity to watercourses, but DEP

          7  is working with the Department of Parks and

          8  Recreation to identify possible locations.

          9                 Other types of BMPs are suited for

         10  densely built areas. In conjunction with the Gaia

         11  Institute and the Department of Parks and

         12  Recreation, DEP will be implementing a pilot of

         13  improved tree pit design, which will be monitored

         14  for effectiveness and wider application.

         15                 New York City street trees are often

         16  planted in small confined pits that limit the amount

         17  of stormwater that can be captured.

         18                 Trees planted in cramped pits can

         19  either die or damage the sidewalk as they grow.

         20                 Improving the design and size of the

         21  tree pit will confer the dual benefits of improving

         22  the chances for the tree's survival and retaining

         23  storm water. Installing underground storage areas

         24  and using structured soils will expand the volume of

         25  stormwater captured by these redesigned pits.
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          2                 Structured soils have more air and

          3  can be used in trenches between trees, under

          4  sidewalks and under porous pavement.

          5                 BMPs include a number of other

          6  strategies, such as vegetated swales and greening of

          7  parking lots. Vegetated ditches, called swales, are

          8  linear, dry ditches designed to receive runoff and

          9  slowly move rain to an outfall point along our

         10  waterways, absorbing water along the way.

         11                 They are especially effective when

         12  located adjacent to parking lots, streets, parkways

         13  or highways or when used as a median. In addition to

         14  storing direct rainfall and reducing storm water

         15  volumes entering the combined sewer system, swales

         16  provide natural cleansing of runoff through the soil

         17  and vegetation.

         18                 The addition of trees and landscaping

         19  to parking lots offers a feasible and cost-effective

         20  way for the private sector to work with the City in

         21  curbing storm water runoff and potentially

         22  decreasing CSO events. Increased landscaping, along

         23  with stormwater detention and retention, could slow

         24  down the rate at which water enters the sewer

         25  system; that will enable New York's combined sewer
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          2  system to treat a higher percentage of stormwater.

          3  Vegetated and gravel buffer strips along the edge of

          4  landscaped areas or surrounding detention

          5  infrastructure can also help filter pollutants from

          6  water and detain the water until after the peak of a

          7  flood has passed.

          8                 BMP strategies that can be put in

          9  place by individual property owners include blue

         10  roofs and rain barrels that detain runoff until

         11  after sewer levels recede, and temporary or

         12  permanent berms, which can serve as street barriers

         13  to walls of water that would otherwise run onto

         14  private property.

         15                 Finally, I would like to give you an

         16  idea of what we expect to accomplish in the

         17  immediate, near, and long-terms, as you requested.

         18                 By the end of 2008, we expect to have

         19  accomplished the following task:

         20                 - Analyze catchbasin placement and

         21  design to ensure optimal storm capture.

         22                 - Implement flow monitoring study to

         23  measure sewer flows for a year and better understand

         24  cause of flooding problems and assess where

         25  infrastructure should be altered.
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          2                 Within 18 months, we should have a

          3  clearer sense of exactly how this flooding occurred

          4  and can begin evaluating long-term attenuation

          5  strategies.

          6                 - Analyze the way wastewater and

          7  stormwater drain, and determine in what areas of the

          8  high level relief sewers would effectively attenuate

          9  flooding.

         10                 - Begin the process of installing

         11  tide gates in Northwest Queens outfalls.

         12                 - Complete the Phase II Drainage Plan

         13  for Southeast Queens.

         14                 - Commence sewer projects in

         15  Southeast Queens: Brookville West, Springfield

         16  Gardens Phase D, Somerville and some small

         17  multi-location projects to solve localized flooding

         18  in Community Boards 12 and 13.

         19                 - Reinitiate Station 6 design.

         20                 - Start up the Station 24 wells; and

         21                 - Continue the mid-Island Bluebelt

         22  acquisition.

         23                 Over the next three years, or by the

         24  end of 2010, our goal is to accomplish the following

         25  milestones:
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          2                 - Complete the tree pit pilot.

          3                 - Commence construction of Baisley

          4  Pond and Springfield Lake Bluebelts/drainage

          5  projects.

          6                 - Complete acquisition of land for

          7  one or more of the Staten Island mid-Island

          8  Bluebelts.

          9                 - Substantially complete the Coney

         10  Island sewer replacement program.

         11                 - Implement an enhanced inspection

         12  program which will include:

         13                 - Sewer mapping and modeling program

         14  to allow for more accurate and faster analysis.

         15                 - Increased physical/staff inspection

         16  of sewers in flood prone areas.

         17                 - Increased inspection of trunk

         18  sewers to minimize systemic problems that might

         19  contribute to localized flooding.

         20                 - Pilot, public and profit, best

         21  management practices projects.

         22                 DEP will initiate in 2008 and begin

         23  construction in '08/'09. DEP will monitor

         24  effectiveness of pilots to guide further use of the

         25  strategies.
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          2                 City strategies:

          3                 - Building vegetated street swales,

          4  permeable pavements and/or tree-pits to retain storm

          5  water and prevent it from entering sewers.

          6                 Individual or private strategies:

          7                 - Implementing blue roofs and/or rain

          8  barrels: Systems for detaining water would keep

          9  run-off out of systems until after sewer levels had

         10  receded, needs testing.

         11                 - Berms, temporary or permanent.

         12  These alterations of the street infrastructure would

         13  serve as barriers to potential walls of water, while

         14  other mitigations can be put in place.

         15                 Finally, following are highlights for

         16  our post-2010 milestones:

         17                 - Complete the build-out of the

         18  Southeast Queens system.

         19                 - Complete the construction of

         20  Station 6.

         21                 - Complete construction of the

         22  mid-Island Bluebelts.

         23                 - Build new capacity in existing

         24  systems where needed, for example, Yellowstone

         25  Boulevard.
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          2                 - Implement BMPs on a broader scale

          3  Citywide.

          4                 And in reference to climate change:

          5                 - Begin integrating climate change

          6  projections with all engineering and design

          7  processes to ensure all new infrastructure reflects

          8  climate change considerations.

          9                 - with the comprehensive program I

         10  have outlined for you today, New York City will be

         11  better prepared to meet the current, unprecedented

         12  challenges.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  testify, and I will be glad to try to answer any

         15  questions you may have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Commissioner. Thank you for your comprehensive

         18  testimony.

         19                 We don't take questions. You'll have

         20  an opportunity to testify.

         21                 Yes, just a little bit of

         22  housekeeping. I just want to recognize that we're

         23  joined by Council Member Koppell, Council Member

         24  Eugene, Council Member Recchia, I believe is still

         25  in the room. Council Member Ignizio -- where is
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          2  he?-- Was here. Council Member Erik Dilan from

          3  Brooklyn, not a Committee member but a valued member

          4  of the Council. I am happy to have him here.

          5                 And with regard to other housekeeping

          6  matters, there is another committee meeting in

          7  another room that needs me for a quorum so they can

          8  take a vote. I'll put them off as long as I can, you

          9  know, do that, but they can't vote without me and I

         10  may have to excuse myself for a moment to go and

         11  give them their quorum and give them my vote. Busy

         12  day here at the Council. But this is the best

         13  hearing going on. You're at the right one. That's

         14  for sure.

         15                 Now, Commissioner, thank you, as I

         16  said, for your testimony. I have some questions. My

         17  overall impression is that we have a lot of people

         18  in the room today, and although they're comforted to

         19  some degree, I would think by sort of like the view

         20  from 30,000 feet, which is what your testimony

         21  provided, they're very concerned about the next

         22  rainfall, about what's going to happen on Utopia

         23  Parkway. They got flooded in April -- in June. No,

         24  they got flooded in July, they got flooded in

         25  August, and they're concerned about what happens
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          2  next.

          3                 And I would think that something that

          4  would be helpful, which I think you'll be amenable

          5  to, would be to, and not everyone could come to this

          6  hearing today, but I think the next phase of this,

          7  and I know that some of these are being coordinated

          8  with the Community Assistance Unit is to get Mr.

          9  Roberts, or whatever, you know, out to that

         10  community, at the Utopia Jewish Center, if it's able

         11  to accommodate people after all the flooding; is the

         12  Jewish Center able to accommodate people now? Okay,

         13  because I know they had a lot of flooding. And that

         14  would provide an opportunity for real, sort of, you

         15  know, pinpoint look at that specific community as to

         16  what's going on on the ground right there, right

         17  now.

         18                 Maybe there is something that can be

         19  done over the very short term that would give folks

         20  a little more comfort. And, so, would that be

         21  something that would be amenable to you and your

         22  staff, Commissioner? To figure out something to do

         23  that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes, we'd be

         25  happy to do that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That would be

          3  great.

          4                 Is Jim Gallagher in the room? Okay,

          5  Jim Gallagher is in the room. He is the head of the

          6  local civic there, and, so, Jim, we'll get that set

          7  up, and when you testify we'll talk more, a little

          8  more.

          9                 Oh, I see we're joined by Archie

         10  Spigner. Archie, a pleasure to have you. I hope you

         11  will be testifying today, and thank you for being

         12  here, Archie. A councilman who served this body

         13  from, what, 1974 to 2001? If I've got my history

         14  right? Okay, good. And so that's good, we've already

         15  made some progress there. We'll get the good folks

         16  from DEP into that community so it can take a real,

         17  you know, put that community under the microscope.

         18  Maybe it doesn't need a lot of infrastructure work.

         19  Maybe there is just something going on, we could

         20  redirect some sewage. I'm talking out of school

         21  here, I don't know. I don't do your job, but when

         22  people get flooded in April, and they get flooded in

         23  July and they get flooded in August, every time it

         24  rains they whince. And so, thank you. Thank you for

         25  that.

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 One thing I feel compelled to ask is

          3  that, although we never saw the actual internal

          4  ten-year capital budget number, it was our

          5  understanding from various back channels that we

          6  found out that the last ten-year capital plan for

          7  DEP, which came out at something like 19 billion

          8  over ten years, and 23 billion over 11 years, those

          9  numbers on that order, it was originally put forward

         10  internally within the Administration of a number

         11  much higher than that. We heard numbers of $40

         12  billion. We heard big numbers floating around and we

         13  were compelled to ask, if it went from 40 billion to

         14  19 billion, that's $21 billion over ten years is not

         15  going to get done, and we are wondering how much of

         16  that was for sewer work.

         17                 Is there any way to give us a sense

         18  of what that number was and whether or not there is

         19  any, whether or not there is any intention to revive

         20  some of those projects that perhaps didn't get

         21  funded in the last go around because OMB didn't sign

         22  off on the budget. I mean, we're grateful that you

         23  were thinking very big with this ten-year budget,

         24  and no one should think that a $19 billion ten-year

         25  budget is any small amount of money. It's
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          2  unprecedented in its scope. Certainly that's a lot

          3  of money, but is there anything that kind of fell

          4  out of the budget process this year that you want to

          5  sort of put back in there?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I think

          7  first to clarify, the initial phantom $40 billion

          8  budget was a very crude number that came out of a

          9  strategic planning exercise we did within the

         10  Department to identify everything we saw on the

         11  horizon, not necessarily on a ten-year horizon, that

         12  we envisioned we would have to do long term,

         13  including the entire rebuilding of the Upstate

         14  system over time.

         15                 So, that was never really intended to

         16  be a ten-year plan. We couldn't do that much work in

         17  ten years. The water rate couldn't bear it. And I

         18  don't think there are enough contractors in the City

         19  or the region to do that much work. Nor do I think

         20  people could stand having that many streets dug up.

         21                 That number had a lot of work around

         22  all three of our major functions - the water supply,

         23  the water and sewer operations and wastewater

         24  treatment. I would say that it was, I can't say if

         25  it was, I can't say if it was easily distributed,
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          2  but each of those had more money in it than was in

          3  our final budget, but something like I think 300,

          4  what is it sewer budget, water and sewer budget a

          5  year? Average? The water and sewer budget is average

          6  of 300 million dollars or 3 billion for the ten

          7  years, and half or more of that is sewer. And as you

          8  know, about a third of the sewer work goes into

          9  Queens. So, I think that we felt, although we would

         10  always like more money, that we had a very

         11  substantial package for the ten-year budget.

         12                 Now, one thing that we're always

         13  trying to do, especially looking at what's been

         14  going in Queens is accelerate, pull some of that

         15  funding closer to now, and you know, from ten years

         16  out and nine years out and eight years out, to pull

         17  it in closer and accelerate, and going into our next

         18  ten-year plan, we will be certainly looking to do

         19  that because of what's been going on with Queens.

         20  But we also think, obviously we already have a

         21  tremendous amount of work scheduled for Queens,

         22  which may not come trippingly off my tongue, but we

         23  could certainly supply for you what we're planning

         24  to do in the next one, two and three years in

         25  Queens, and we also think that in terms of flooding,
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          2  some of the operational changes we're talking about

          3  are going to give, are the way to get faster relief,

          4  and that's why the Mayor's Office of Operations has

          5  convened this task force to try and deal with things

          6  that can be done very quickly. Not only best

          7  management practices, but things can be done even

          8  more quickly than that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         10  you. Fortunately, I just got the dreaded note, the

         11  dreaded note, and so the Speaker and the Queens

         12  Delegation Chair needed to go in the other room.

         13  We're going to just take a couple-minute recess.

         14  I'll be right back. No one change any of your

         15  thoughts or change any of your plans for the day.

         16                 I've just got to go give them their

         17  quorum, give them my vote, and then I'll be right

         18  back.

         19                 So, we'll just take a very, very

         20  brief -- where is everybody going? Where is

         21  everybody going? I said not to do this. I said not

         22  to do this. Okay, I'll be right back. Forgive me.

         23                 (Recess taken.)

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're joined

         25  also by Council Member David Yassky. It's a pleasure
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          2  to have David. Melissa Mark-Viverito, a valued

          3  member of this Committee. Tom White, a member of

          4  this Committee.

          5                 We were just talking a little bit

          6  about budget, and i appreciate your answer,

          7  Commissioner. But as a result of the storms that we

          8  got this year, you went through the chronology, is

          9  anything different now in the budget in terms of

         10  what you're going to do versus before April?

         11  Because, you know, that was then, this is now. As a

         12  result of April, as a result of July, as a result of

         13  August, is anything different going to be in the

         14  budget?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Yes. We plan to

         16  propose to accelerate some of the Jamaica work, some

         17  of the Southeast Queens work and perhaps some things

         18  that will come out of these explorations that we're

         19  doing now in the part of Northern Queens where the

         20  swath of this storm went across. And we'll be

         21  putting that in a request for an update on the

         22  January budget. We won't be waiting until the next

         23  ten-year budget. We will be bringing it forward this

         24  January. Whether we will be able to get it --

         25  whether we'll be able to get it in our budget,
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          2  because essentially it means we have to find some

          3  other things to defer, but we feel that it's very

          4  urgent and we're going to try to do that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But in a budget

          6  of that magnitude sometimes there is the ability to

          7  move some things around, and it's not an uncommon

          8  practice. And I want the people to know who will be

          9  coming to the Fresh Meadows Civic Association, that

         10  as a result of their coming to that meeting and

         11  working with you, they can get something real

         12  budgetarily out of that, and the fact that you've

         13  demonstrated your flexibility to do that is most

         14  welcome, and I appreciate that.

         15                 The Assemblyman made aware to me, I

         16  wasn't aware of this previously until he told me

         17  that, that the FEMA has declared, has made the

         18  decision to do this disaster declaration, which

         19  they've done, they're going to spend X amount of

         20  dollars, whatever it's going to be, and it was made

         21  aware to me that the City of New York, DEP, could

         22  indeed apply for up to 15 percent of all the money

         23  that FEMA gives out. So, FEMA gives out X amount of

         24  dollars, the City could apply for 15 percent of that

         25  to use on preemptive disaster work or something in
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          2  order to prevent this type of disaster from

          3  happening again. Is this something which the City

          4  intends to do, and how does this work?

          5                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Well, I think if

          6  there is money available, the City certainly tries

          7  to take advantage of it, and in this particular

          8  case, we are not FEMA, we don't have a lot of FEMA

          9  expertise. But as part of the Task Force we're going

         10  to work with OEM because they do understand all of

         11  these regulations and provisions to try to see

         12  what's eligible and to identify what we would like

         13  to pursue. So, yes, we will be definitely doing

         14  that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Do you have some

         17  suggestions?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I mean, you

         19  know, make you aware of that, if people weren't

         20  aware of that. I mean, it was put forward to me that

         21  this was something that the City could do, so I pass

         22  it along to you. I don't know what kind of strings

         23  come attached to this money or what kind of

         24  procedure you have to go through, but I've been made

         25  aware of the fact, at least with the information I
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          2  got, that there is some money on the table, being

          3  that we got the disaster declaration and 15 percent

          4  of whatever it is that FEMA spends here, I mean

          5  we'll certainly take the money. Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Mr. Chair,

          7  while you are thinking, I would just like to

          8  apologize for being late.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: But as you

         11  know, the Consumer Affairs hearing was discussing my

         12  etching acid bill this morning.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. They know

         14  all about the note I got. The note telling me to

         15  come over.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes, I can

         17  vouch for the fact that you were over there voting

         18  also. So, that works out for both of us.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Peter was with

         20  me. Peter Vallone, Jr.

         21                 Is the City playing any role in

         22  trying to make people aware of the FEMA thing in

         23  getting them to participate? Does DEP have any role

         24  in that, now that we've had the disaster

         25  declaration? Does the City take it upon itself to
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          2  make sure people are aware of that? Because I know

          3  I've heard that if you make a claim to the

          4  Comptroller's Office that you can't simultaneously

          5  make a claim to the feds or some sort of complicated

          6  nature of the way that works, and I, as Chairman of

          7  this Committee, don't understand it. It's probably

          8  true that Jane and Joe Front Porch (sic) don't

          9  understand how that works either. They have their

         10  claim that, you know, goes to the Comptroller's

         11  Office, they have the claim to FEMA. What is the

         12  City doing to make sure that people understand what

         13  people have at their disposal and how to get that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I'm not sure I

         15  have a good answer for you on that. My understanding

         16  has been that the FEMA money comes through the State

         17  and this is my understanding, I may be in error. And

         18  that the State in return makes grants to people or

         19  loans through SEMA, but I may be mistaken. This just

         20  came up last week, and I haven't gotten a response

         21  on it yet. But as I said, we will be looking to OEM

         22  and if there's a role for us to play, we will

         23  certainly try to play it in terms of giving out

         24  information on how people can take advantage of it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. And
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          2  this is something that will come up when people come

          3  out to Queens, people are going to want to know

          4  this. Also, we had made a request for a

          5  representative of FEMA to be in the room, not to

          6  testify but be in the room. Is there any

          7  representative of FEMA who is currently in the room?

          8  Did we come through on that?

          9                 Okay, so FEMA, let the record show

         10  that FEMA, even though we requested, we e-mailed, we

         11  spoke to them, they indicated they were going to be

         12  here, but they're not here, or they're not here now,

         13  unfortunately.

         14                 Let me turn to some of my colleagues

         15  who have been patiently waiting. I've got a list of

         16  questions but let me go now to Erik Dilan, who has

         17  questions, Commissioner, followed by David Yassky.

         18  Council Member Dilan.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you,

         20  Chairman Gennaro. I'd also like to at this time

         21  publicly thank Commissioner Lloyd for the work that

         22  she's done on behalf of my constituents in the

         23  Bushwick section of my district who have been

         24  experiencing flooding problems in their homes, even

         25  on an event as, you know, not as dramatic as say a
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          2  Tornado in Brooklyn.

          3                 I just have some simple questions as

          4  it relates to some of the infrastructure, I guess

          5  specifically in Bushwick and then the broad practice

          6  throughout the City.

          7                 It's my understanding that most

          8  residential homes are supposed to have two separate

          9  lines. They're supposed to have a stormwater line,

         10  and a sewage line; is that correct or incorrect?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Council

         12  member, typically there is one line that comes out

         13  in combined areas of the City where the system is a

         14  combined sewer system, so it takes both storm and

         15  sanitary flow. In some areas where there are

         16  independent storm systems, they can separate the

         17  storm lines, maybe the roof drains from their

         18  sanitary lines. But I think it's very typical that

         19  there's one connection that comes out of most,

         20  particularly residential homes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay. So then

         22  if I understand you correctly, that there is no

         23  standard Citywide practice, or if there is a

         24  standard Citywide practice, it's combined. It's a

         25  combined system, and then in some areas of the City
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          2  there is a dual system?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: There

          4  are essentially three types of sewer systems. In

          5  simple terms. There is a sanitary system which is

          6  designed to handle strictly sanitary flow.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: There is

          9  a combined system which is designed to handle both

         10  the sanitary flow and the storm flow at the same

         11  time, concurrently, where the capacity of the system

         12  is really more dependent on the storm flow than the

         13  sanitary flow, and then there are separate systems

         14  or areas where there are storm sewers that just

         15  carry stormwater and sanitary sewers that just carry

         16  sanitary.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, I guess

         18  then what's the criteria? When does DEP come in and

         19  make a determination as to when an area needs a

         20  separate system?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Seventy percent

         22  of the City has combined sewers, and the long-term

         23  goal of the City is to separate out sewers for

         24  stormwater. But that is a very long-term goal

         25  because it is a very difficult thing to do.
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          2                 Most all of Brooklyn has combined

          3  sewers, and in those areas the drainage from the

          4  house goes into the combined waste pipe and out

          5  through the sewer system.

          6                 As we have put in new sewers, we have

          7  tried to build segments of separated storm sewers

          8  that eventually can all be hooked up, but the

          9  greatest focus on storm, separated storm sewers has

         10  been in the parts of the City which is part of

         11  Staten Island and part of Southeast Queens, there

         12  are no storm sewers at all. Not combined or

         13  otherwise. There is simply no place for the

         14  stormwater to go, and in those areas we are building

         15  out. Because there is no combined sewer. There is

         16  only a sanitary sewer. We are building out a

         17  separate storm system. That has been our first

         18  priority because they have no storm system.

         19                 But long-term, we would like to see

         20  the entire City separated. Right now we project that

         21  will take decades and decades to do, because even if

         22  you build a piece of separated storm sewer from

         23  point A to point B, until it's connected all the way

         24  down to the water body that it flows into, it really

         25  doesn't work. It may provide a little storage for
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          2  stormwater, but at the end it really has to all flow

          3  all the way down. So, they take a very long time to

          4  build. If you build them as you replace small pieces

          5  of the system, which is what we've been doing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, do you

          7  have a rough estimate? I would imagine it would be a

          8  very rough estimate, as to how much it would cost to

          9  have the entire City on two separate lines?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I asked that

         11  question when I first came to DEP, and I was given

         12  an answer which I think was pretty much pulled out

         13  of the air, because we weren't as focused on climate

         14  change at that time, 50 years and $50 billion. I

         15  don't think that's necessarily a crazy amount of

         16  money in terms of what it would cost. It would be a

         17  lot of money. I don't know in terms of the amount of

         18  time, but I think that increasingly we are focusing

         19  on other ways to manage stormwater, because with the

         20  intensity of the storms that seem to be happening

         21  lately, we think we would have to build storm lines

         22  so enormous that we literally might have trouble

         23  fitting them under the street. And, so, we are

         24  trying to look as quickly as possible at other

         25  things we can do to try to provide some of the
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          2  stormwater retention within the urban landscape that

          3  used to be there.

          4                 I mean, there used to be the

          5  occasional vacant lot, the occasional little wet

          6  area down by a roadway that nobody did anything

          7  with. Those increasingly are getting paved over, and

          8  so we're trying to look at ways that we can put some

          9  of that stormwater retention back. And some of the

         10  ideas are to take parking lots and make the -- under

         11  the parking lot, engineered in such a way that it

         12  would retain stormwater for awhile and then allow it

         13  to drain off, put permeable pavement.

         14                 We're looking at the possibility of

         15  taking school yards and trying to put some

         16  stormwater retention under school yards because

         17  that's something, a lot of acreage around the City

         18  is school yards, even though each individual one is

         19  fairly small.

         20                 So, as you may have heard, the City

         21  Planning Commission is going to limit the amount of

         22  front yards that can be paved for parking, because a

         23  lot of stormwater retention is being lost to just

         24  people paving over what used to be an area that was

         25  grass or was planted with some bushes.
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          2                 So, we're looking at all of these

          3  things to try to recapture some of that capacity

          4  because we estimate that the amount of runoff has

          5  increased 50 percent with all this additional

          6  paving, so that's really impacting tremendously on

          7  the combined sewer system and its ability to handle

          8  the amount of stormwater.

          9                 So, we're really focusing on that, as

         10  well as thinking long term about how we can create

         11  separated storm sewers.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay. So, I'm

         13  glad -- I just have one follow-up, Mr. Chair, and

         14  then I'll be terminating my questioning.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I'll just

         16  make a note to other questioners as well, but there

         17  is a 1:00 p.m. double hearing in this room, as I

         18  said, at 1:00, so we're trying to move it along. But

         19  please.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: So,

         21  Commissioner, I'm glad to see that the long-term

         22  policy is to go to combined systems. I hope that

         23  this Administration and future Administrations

         24  follow the example that you're trying to set in

         25  regard to this, because I believe it is the right
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          2  way to go.

          3                 My constituents after a heavy rain

          4  get an overflow in their basements of this combined

          5  system, and as anybody with half of an imagination

          6  can imagination how unpleasant that could be.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: You have a lot of

          8  sewer back-ups, and my understanding is that there

          9  is an area in your district where we have been

         10  looking at a supplementary piece of sewer to try to

         11  provide some relief for that, because we think it's

         12  required there.

         13                 So, we're hoping to be able to

         14  introduce that to provide some relief.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, and I

         16  thank you. And then my final question is, and I'm

         17  not sure if you have the answer --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I thought that

         19  was the final question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: No. I didn't

         21  ask the question.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was just

         23  giving you a hard time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: On common

         25  development practices for new homes, I understand it
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          2  may be by rule, I'm not sure if it's by your agency

          3  or by HPD, that these homes don't have a common line

          4  that leads into the City's main. Is that a rule by

          5  your agency or any other City agency, or is that by

          6  law?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: The practice of

          8  taking several residences and putting them on one

          9  line which then has one connection to the sewer

         10  system, is something that has really proliferated, I

         11  would say, over the past 20 years, and frequently

         12  creates a problem. It is not prohibited, as I

         13  understand it, but my personal feeling is that I

         14  would like to see it prohibited. It saves a lot of

         15  money for the developer, because rather than

         16  building several individual lines, they build one,

         17  but at the end of the day, when those are

         18  condominiums or town houses that are sold, it turns

         19  out to be a huge maintenance headache for the buyer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay. So, in

         21  the end, who signs off on those plans; would it be

         22  your agency or HPD?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: At the end of the

         24  day, well, sometimes it's HPD and sometimes it's

         25  Buildings. But in the past DEP has approved some of
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          2  those, as we have observed how poorly they get

          3  maintained over the years and how many problems they

          4  create, we have really started to believe that

          5  that's not a good solution.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you,

          9  Erik.

         10                 Councilman Yassky.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         12  much, Chair Gennaro. Thank you very much for

         13  indulging me, I know I do not sit on this Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: David, if I

         15  could just before, I forgot to mention that we were

         16  joined by Council Member Comrie and Council Member

         17  Liu. Forgive my interruption, Councilman Yassky.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: No, thank you.

         19  I really appreciate it, I understand your time

         20  constraints. I will be very brief.

         21                 I certainly want to make the point

         22  that really Erik Dilan just made and underscored,

         23  that I know a lot of the folks of this hearing and

         24  of the public attention has been on the flooding in

         25  Queens, which was of an extraordinary order of
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          2  magnitude, but I just want to make sure that you

          3  know, Commissioner, as I know you do, that this is

          4  occurring Citywide. Certainly I can only speak I

          5  guess for my area that I represent in Brooklyn, but

          6  we had, I brought with me all the e-mails we

          7  received after the summer rains that we printed out.

          8  I won't read them all, but one picture that really

          9  made the point, that this is Baerd Street. Not a

         10  street that has particularly bad problems, where the

         11  water was up to about a third way up the way of the

         12  tires of the parked cars. And what I believe, that

         13  was an extraordinary rainfall, as we all know, but

         14  it brought to light the much more common problem,

         15  you're nodding, I know you know this, but I can tell

         16  you there is a certainty from what my constituents

         17  have told me since, you know, what I've been hearing

         18  from them since then, this just got people to call

         19  and say this is happening a lot, but it's not just

         20  that one incident, as you know.

         21                 And we've been working with Mark

         22  Lanigan, who I just want to say has been terrific in

         23  dealing with me in my office in setting up a meeting

         24  to have just first of all me understand what the

         25  issues are in the area, and then after that to go
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          2  out and explain it to residents so that they

          3  understand. I think that is critical. People are

          4  completely ignorant and they need to have this

          5  explained to them.

          6                 The last point is simply that I do

          7  think that what we need is to give people what the

          8  options are, and none of them are good ones. You

          9  know, it's spending a lot of money, it's having to

         10  deal with things we don't want to have to deal with,

         11  but we have to put what the options are and then as

         12  a City set of leaders make that decision, simply

         13  making it by default, you know, rains and floods, is

         14  not an option, as I know you know. And I just want

         15  to say I certainly am committed to working with the

         16  Chair in making sure that those options are set out

         17  there and that we make a decision which course we

         18  want to take and then go forward.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. I won't ask any

         20  questions, I know you're under time constraints.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         23  Councilman Yassky.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: If I may? If you

         25  haven't shared those with Mark, we rely very heavily
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          2  on 3-1-1, but 3-1-1, if there is already a complaint

          3  about a particular intersection being flooded, they

          4  don't continue to take those complaints. And so

          5  sometimes some of them get, you know, we don't have

          6  the sense of how widespread something is, so we have

          7  found it very useful to get e-mails and other

          8  things, pictures, letters, because it's helping us

          9  to have a more robust profile of what's going on.

         10  So, please feel free to send those on to Mark, and

         11  we are trying to use those profiles of what the

         12  hotspots are, because what these more intense rains

         13  that have come along with more paving and all kinds

         14  of other things are starting to show us is,

         15  Southeast Queens we know about, poor Southeast

         16  Queens has been under water for awhile, but these

         17  are areas that have different types of problems, and

         18  if they're having a little bit of a problem now or a

         19  lot of a problem, it's probably going to get worse

         20  if we have more of these big storms. So, we're

         21  trying to identify them as hotspots as they come

         22  along, or wet spots, as the case may be.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         24  Commissioner.

         25                 Council Member Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair. Good morning, Commissioner. I want to thank

          4  you for being here. I want to thank Councilman

          5  Gennaro for holding this meeting so quickly after

          6  the floodings that have happened all summer. I see

          7  that you've been talking about my district already,

          8  and I want to thank you for including that in your

          9  testimony. The fact that we are in a flood-prone

         10  area with an aquifer and with the incomplete

         11  infrastructure, we have a three-prong problem, as

         12  you well know.

         13                 Since we're under a time constraint,

         14  I won't to ask you the 35 questions that I wanted to

         15  ask you, but I will just take this opportunity,

         16  number one, to thank you for being responsive. Your

         17  agency has been responsive and is trying to work

         18  with my office and the other elected officials in

         19  Southeast Queens.

         20                 As you know, as part of the Jamaica

         21  rezoning, we put together a Task Force with City

         22  agencies that you're going to participate on, to try

         23  to work on the infrastructure issues to be built in,

         24  and I want to thank you for understanding you wanted

         25  to add some recommendations to that, even before it
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          2  was developed. I want to thank you in advance for

          3  that.

          4                 My primary question, as you know,

          5  from the fact that we now seem to have more intense

          6  rain over a shorter period of time, we have a

          7  three-prong problem that we need to try to come up

          8  with some short-term solutions for, and, frankly,

          9  one of the issues is that I have a lot of homeowners

         10  that have their basements built out where their

         11  windows are below ground level or basements,

         12  sub-basements, and/or driveways that are below

         13  ground level. And I know that's a major problem

         14  because as water is running, it tends to run right

         15  into those locations.

         16                 As you know from what happened on

         17  Springfield Boulevard, we had situations where we

         18  had at least six or eight feet of water running down

         19  the Boulevard, because this was not at capacity. So,

         20  I need to find out from you what you think would be

         21  the best short-term problems so that those

         22  homeowners can protect themselves from other heavy

         23  intense rain storms?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We just had the

         25  first meeting on Friday of a task force. It's not a
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          2  Jamaica task force, it's a flooding task force, and

          3  we're looking, in particular, at two things, because

          4  we know the next storm, which isn't meant to come

          5  for five years, might come next week.

          6                 So, we are looking at the kinds of

          7  things that we can do to intercept this kind of

          8  water coming down streets that we're getting. And we

          9  think that one of the things that's going on that's

         10  a little different is with this very -- we've

         11  already had a situation where the sewer gets full,

         12  or in the case if there is no storm sewer at all, it

         13  just floods into the sanitary sewer and people get

         14  sewer back-ups.

         15                 But we think the other thing that's

         16  happening is with the street, with the rain being so

         17  intense and washing so much debris, that some of the

         18  areas that might normally absorb some of the rain

         19  are not absorbing it. So, that's been getting worse.

         20                 So, what we're doing with this task

         21  force and DOT and OEM and anybody you can think of,

         22  a very long list, is trying to look over the next 30

         23  days with things we could do very short term to

         24  intervene in some of those situations where the

         25  roadways are becoming very significant conduits for
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          2  the water.

          3                 And we are also trying to come up

          4  with things that people can do to protect themselves

          5  better, that we can share that information with them

          6  so that while we are waiting for some of these fixes

          7  that are going to take a longer time to get into

          8  place, they will have some protection. So over the

          9  next 30 days we hope to put together a package that

         10  will be very useful to people, will also get us out

         11  on the streets with some additional things that we

         12  can do, and we'll be ready to talk about that, and

         13  we're just really hoping we're not going to have a

         14  big rain in the next 30 days.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Well, I

         16  hope that we can have that done within the next 30

         17  days so we can hold a community meeting. My

         18  community has been chomping at the bit to have a

         19  meeting in the community. I just did not want to

         20  hold the meeting without giving them some kind of

         21  hope, as opposed to just holding a meeting where

         22  everybody can express their frustration.

         23                 So, I know that you're working on it

         24  feverishly and I hope that you an come up with it as

         25  soon as possible so that we can hold that joint
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          2  meeting.

          3                 One thing that I'll ask you for,

          4  since we are pressed for time, and I can't ask the

          5  35 questions, is that if DEP can consider asking the

          6  Department of Buildings and HPD to not allow for

          7  basement build-outs, especially with City developed

          8  property. We had at two HPD sites in our district

          9  where they built scatter-site homes, where they

         10  built basements below ground level, and as you know

         11  the one on 165th Street just got totally flooded

         12  out. Those are homes that were designed by the City

         13  and built by the City for affordable homes and now

         14  we have people that have lost the ability to use

         15  those spaces when they thought that the City, since

         16  it was a City project, the City knew what they were

         17  doing. Clearly there is a problem, so I'm going to

         18  ask DEP if we can consider getting the City to do a

         19  moratorium, especially on projects like that. That's

         20  something we're going to have to flesh out a little

         21  bit more, but it's becoming a critical problem in my

         22  district where we're having City-owned property and

         23  subsidized property that are being built clearly

         24  with a problem where they cannot sustain, even a

         25  basic rain, as much as a heavy rain, so it's a real
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          2  problem.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: We will certainly

          4  make that part of the task force to study. I think

          5  that would make a lot of sense.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          7                 Mr. Chair, in deference to your time

          8  and the fact that we have other speakers, I won't

          9  ask my other 33 questions. Thank you. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you, Council Member Comrie. I just want to thank you

         12  publicly in a special way. It could be really the

         13  impetus for having this hearing sooner rather than

         14  later. You were on the phone with my office

         15  immediately and with me personally so we juggled the

         16  schedule and made this happen, and I know that DEP

         17  would be amenable to coming to your district, as

         18  they are going to come to mine and perhaps you can

         19  ask some of those other 33 questions at the local

         20  forum that I'm sure they'll have for you.

         21                 Thank you, Council Member Comrie.

         22                 Council Member Liu.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman. I was going to announce I had about 50

         25  questions, but I'll only ask two.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: As if. Anyway --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          4  much, Mr. Chairman, for holding this hearing.

          5                 Thank you, Commissioner Lloyd, for

          6  appearing today and bringing your terrific team.

          7                 Over the years I have worked with the

          8  Department of Environmental Protection to expand the

          9  sewer capacity certainly in my area. I do want to

         10  thank Mark Lanigan for always keeping us abreast of

         11  everything that's happening, and when necessary, to

         12  push things along.

         13                 I have two questions on two items for

         14  you, and that is, first and foremost, there were

         15  complaints that I received in my office immediately

         16  after the flooding of August 8th, and to a lesser

         17  extent during other periods of torrential downpours,

         18  and the complaint was that when people call 3-1-1,

         19  that the 3-1-1 operators were not even taking the

         20  complaints, because at that point perhaps they had

         21  just become inundated with the calls as much as many

         22  of the residents had been inundated by the water.

         23                 Do you know if that actually

         24  occurred, or is that actually an unfounded complaint

         25  that residents were calling in with?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: My understanding

          3  from Commissioner Paul Cosgrave, is that on the 8th

          4  of August they had some of the same problems that

          5  many people had, a lot of their staff was not able

          6  to get in, and they were very short staffed and

          7  there had been an enormous number of calls and they

          8  did have much longer wait times than usual, and that

          9  the staff, if they had already received a call about

         10  a particular area, did not take time to take a

         11  complaint, because they were trying to get through

         12  the queue of calls.

         13                 They are working on a plan of action.

         14  You may want to discuss it with him directly, to try

         15  to make sure that's the case.

         16                 There was another issue that came up

         17  that was very interesting, which is that people, if

         18  there is a call from a building, for example,

         19  without a sewer back-up, once 3-1-1 takes that call,

         20  they consider that a complaint that's been taken,

         21  and they say to the next person we have that

         22  complaint, thank you very much. There was a

         23  misconception on people's part that they had to get

         24  a specific complaint number if they were going to

         25  file with the Comptroller's Office, because they
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          2  thought that they wanted to get compensation and

          3  that's really not the case.

          4                 So, people got extremely frustrated

          5  if they couldn't get a complaint number from 3-1-1,

          6  but I think that's been straightened out. So, if

          7  they already have a particular complaint, my

          8  understanding is they don't take it a second time.

          9  They say that's already been called in. And so

         10  sometimes people find that frustrating. But I think

         11  the 8th was a special case where they were really

         12  trying to just fly through and get the things that

         13  they hadn't heard already.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Sure. Well, I

         15  mean that certainly is an acceptable response if the

         16  3-1-1 call center was totally and completely

         17  inundated with calls.

         18                 Just going forward, I would just like

         19  to put on the record that the data that comes out of

         20  3-1-1 in the aftermath of the August 8th flooding,

         21  will therefore be incomplete.

         22                 So, when we formulate policy and set

         23  budget priorities going forward, that we have to

         24  recognize the shortfalls of the data gathered on

         25  August 8th and the immediately following days.
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          2                 The other question I have for you

          3  concerns the, you know, it's one thing when your

          4  home is flooded with rainwater that comes in from

          5  the street; it is, in my opinion, 100 times worse

          6  when raw sewage backs up into your basement, as many

          7  of our residents all throughout this City, certainly

          8  in my area of Flushing, had experienced. And I know

          9  you had covered this earlier, and I apologize for

         10  not being here for the entire hearing, but there is

         11  a great deal of, you know, some people would call it

         12  conjecture, some people would call it accusation,

         13  that during certain conditions the DEP actually

         14  shuts off access to certain parts of the sewer

         15  system, perhaps to maintain the integrity of other

         16  parts of the system. There is a CSO tank being

         17  built, as you know, in my area, and the pipe leading

         18  up to that CSO tank has been rumored to being either

         19  shut down or partially shut down, which caused for

         20  the very first time severe flooding in my area where

         21  previous years we have not seen any kind of

         22  flooding, certainly merely to the magnitude we saw,

         23  and it has to do with far more than just the

         24  magnitude of the rainfall and the intensity of the

         25  rainfall. It has to do with flooding that really, in
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          2  my opinion, must have occurred because of a change

          3  in the flow of water on the ground as opposed to

          4  just having a torrential downpour on August 8th.

          5                 So, my question is, do you know of

          6  any of these kinds of changes in the flow of water,

          7  both storm runoff, as well as raw sewage that could

          8  have resulted in something like this happening to

          9  certain blocks for the very first time?

         10                 I see we have Deputy Commissioner

         11  Greeley, a great friend over the years.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Commissioner

         13  Greeley is ready to join me here.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Let me say first

         16  that one of the things that we think was at work was

         17  that there was a high tide, and that that was

         18  pushing back at the ability of the combined sewer

         19  overflows to be released, because of the pressure of

         20  the tide slowed that release down. We think that's

         21  one of the problems.

         22                 But in addition, many questions came

         23  up about the Flushing tank because it has just

         24  started operating and we have been looking at that,

         25  and Deputy Commissioner Greeley is now going to
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          2  address it.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Good

          4  afternoon, Mr. Chair, and Council members.

          5                 A couple of things.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Doug, if you

          7  could just state your name for the record?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Sure. My

          9  name is Douglas Greeley, deputy Commissioner of

         10  Wastewater Treatment for DEP.

         11                 When I was sitting in Jimmy's chair,

         12  I would hear the same thing from the communities.

         13  They cut off the valves at the plant and we flooded.

         14                 Now that I am in charge of

         15  wastewater, I know that in fact we do shut valves at

         16  the plant, it's called "throttling." It's done to

         17  protect the biology of the treatment, but it doesn't

         18  cause flow to back up into the communities. I could

         19  nail that one right through the heart.

         20                 We have a lot of CSO outlets that

         21  will handle the flow. It just means more to the

         22  waterways. But that does not result, the flooding

         23  does not result in neighborhood flooding.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What you're

         25  saying, Doug, is that the flow is not slowed down,

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  it just goes to a different place?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

          4  correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Rather than

          6  going into the plant, it goes out to the local

          7  waterway.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

          9  correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:

         12  Specifically with the Flushing CSO that's just come

         13  on line, as Commissioner stated, there was a high

         14  tide. In addition to the rainfall, we thought there

         15  was maybe something with the condition of the valves

         16  in the CSO facility. In fact the valves were open.

         17                 One thing that we did note is that

         18  there is a relief line, once the tank fills up, then

         19  any subsequent rain has to be directed to a

         20  waterway, in this case Flushing Creek. There was a

         21  concrete weir that was placed in the height to

         22  prevent tide water from coming back into the system,

         23  and anything that impedes flow in a sewer is an

         24  anathema to us.

         25                 What we're looking to do now is to
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          2  remove that weir and put in something flexible that

          3  will hold the tide out but not prevent flow from

          4  getting out of the system.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I appreciate

          6  that. Okay, John has more questions, but in the

          7  interest of time, I really have to move the hearing

          8  forward.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: If Council

         10  members have more questions and would like to send

         11  them to us, we'll be glad to respond to them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13                 So, I have more questions as well,

         14  which I'm not going to be able to get to, including,

         15  I'm passing a question up on my favorite subject,

         16  rental payments, which is like, I'm passing that one

         17  up, that's a big one for me to pass up.

         18                 But Jim Gallagher, I know that you're

         19  going to be testifying, I just wanted you to, during

         20  the part that DEP is up here, I think now is

         21  probably good a time as any for you to discuss with

         22  them before some of them go about possible dates

         23  where they can come down, okay? So, perhaps it would

         24  be a joint thing between Flushing Heights, who is

         25  not represented here, and your civic. We'll just do
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          2  it all in one place. They can't go to every little

          3  civic. And I think if we just have the both civics,

          4  you know, you can host it, and then we'll just do it

          5  that way. So, if that's okay with you guys, that

          6  would be great.

          7                 So, once again, thank you so much.

          8  Thank you for coming. Thank you for your

          9  comprehensive testimony. Thank you for your

         10  willingness to come to my community, to come to

         11  Leroy's community, come to anyone's community who

         12  asks. I know you would be willing to do that, and I

         13  appreciate it.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: I think Ann is

         15  telling me that I should say we are trying to

         16  schedule these as quickly as possible, and in some

         17  cases we're trying to perhaps combine a couple, just

         18  so we can get out in the community faster. But she

         19  will be working with Dan on that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That will be

         21  fine. What you're saying is not on the record now

         22  because you're not before a microphone. But Jim, if

         23  you want to talk to Ann Canty, or whatever. But we

         24  want to be among the first, so maybe it's a first

         25  come, first served thing. Okay, thank you very much,
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          2  Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner Roberts. It's a

          3  pleasure to have you here.

          4                 And we have our very, very patient

          5  Borough President Helen Marshall, who I would like

          6  to call forward at this time. She has many

          7  qualities, patience being one of them. We appreciate

          8  her indulgence.

          9                 To be followed by the Honorable

         10  Archie Spigner, who will come after Helen Marshall.

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: I would

         12  like to thank Commissioner Lloyd for her real

         13  concern for the issues of Queens. We have been

         14  suffering for many years with our water system.

         15  Particularly her BlueBelt Drainage strategies. They

         16  sound interesting, but they really can make a

         17  difference for us. And of course, I want to thank

         18  this Council, and Commissioner Gennaro was actually

         19  a Counsel to the Environmental Committee when I

         20  served on it for ten years. He was terrific then,

         21  he's terrific now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         23                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: It gives

         24  us all an important opportunity to address crucial

         25  issues for our boroughs. The Borough of Queens has
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          2  undergone several major periods of development over

          3  the past 80 or so years. Perhaps the largest took

          4  place in the decade immediately following World War

          5  II. I'm going to give you some history here because

          6  it's important.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And also, I'd

          8  just like to state for the record, this is the

          9  testimony of Borough President Helen Marshall.

         10                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Yes.

         11                 During this period, the bludgeoning

         12  neighborhoods and the construction of affordable

         13  homes were for returning veterans. Many of the of

         14  the sewers we have today in Southeast Queens,

         15  particularly, were installed to take care of

         16  primarily the Sanitation needs, not storm for the

         17  increased population. Due in large part to the very

         18  inequitable system in place at that period of time,

         19  the Jamaica Water Supply Company, which we are

         20  delighted, and I remember Archie for all those years

         21  I shared with him in the Council, that was something

         22  that he pushed for so hard and that has finally come

         23  to fruition.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: When you say

         25  "pushed for," you mean the condemnation of that
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          2  system?

          3                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Right.

          4  Yes, absolutely.

          5                 The sewer systems were funded under a

          6  local assessment method, which unfairly penalized

          7  adjacent homeowners on any street in which a large

          8  storm sewer was constructed. If a homeowner had no

          9  sewer, they were not assessed.

         10                 In much of Southeast Queens, in order

         11  to address the severe shortage of housing in the

         12  post World War II period, it was decided the storm

         13  sewers could wait, as there was plenty of vacant

         14  land and creeks to mitigate excess flood waters that

         15  today there isn't.

         16                 Grade waivers allowed the

         17  construction of housing at existing grades, waiving

         18  the requirement to build, to legally establish

         19  street grades in affected areas. These concessions

         20  contributed to many of the flooding problems we

         21  encounter today in much of Southeast Queens. Today

         22  we find ourselves confronted with several major

         23  problems in many areas of Queens, as you have heard

         24  from the Commissioner, problems no so easily

         25  dismissed, as they may have been decades ago. The
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          2  legacy of not building the appropriate storm systems

          3  during the post-war period leaves us with

          4  neighborhoods constantly plagued by major flooding,

          5  not only on the streets, but in basements or affect

          6  the entire low-lying property.

          7                 Conventional storm sewers are

          8  directly needed to compliment the existing sanitary

          9  system, which incidentally are also reaching the

         10  point that they should not be reaching.

         11                 Much of Southeast Queens, more than

         12  5,000 acres, feed into the sewer trunks of

         13  Springfield Boulevard. This system is comprised of

         14  various large size storm sewers, culminating in four

         15  large sewers that discharge into Thurston Basin in

         16  Jamaica Bay.

         17                 The City has invested more than $120

         18  million over the past 15 years to build the missing

         19  pieces of this major trunk system. The time is now

         20  to continue the build out of the required lateral

         21  sewers which will provide adequate drainage for the

         22  communities east and west of Springfield Boulevard.

         23                 These lateral sewer systems will also

         24  require in many instances changes in street grade.

         25  Effectively this means that a DOT street project
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          2  will have to be done in conjunction with DEP sewer

          3  and water projects.

          4                 The funding of these capital

          5  projects, although very closely related, becomes

          6  somewhat problematic, since the funding sources are

          7  from two very distinct and vastly different sources.

          8                 DEP relies on sewer water-bound

          9  authority funds, and DOT New York City capital

         10  funds. There must, however, be a way to address

         11  these funding requirements in a methodical and

         12  effective manner. Even if much of the required

         13  funding was made immediately available, it would

         14  still take many years to build out the required

         15  system and all of the affected area. In a practical

         16  sense, DEP should be addressing the most severely

         17  affected areas initially as the grade requirements

         18  dictate.

         19                 And by the way, I was glad that I

         20  stayed, that I didn't go ahead of Commissioner Lloyd

         21  because she is actually going about this in the

         22  right way.

         23                 Many years ago a decision was reached

         24  by OMB which allowed the use of capital funds to

         25  construct seepage basins in many parts of Southeast
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          2  Queens.

          3                 These seepage basins were meant to

          4  provide interim relief from local flooding by

          5  allowing flood waters to drain through the seepage

          6  wells into the ground wherever appropriate soil

          7  conditions permitted. Most of these seepage basins

          8  alleviated pounding and mitigated flooding problems

          9  over the years.

         10                 The problems with the seepage basins,

         11  more than several hundred had been installed, but

         12  they have a useful service life of somewhere between

         13  eight to 20 years. Many of the basins are at the end

         14  of their useful lives, and are now failing -- and

         15  the flooding they temporary alleviated is returning.

         16                 In fairness to literally thousands of

         17  Queens residents, the cleaning, refurbishment or

         18  reconstruction where required of these failing

         19  seepage basins, which were after all an interim

         20  measure, should be given consideration.

         21                 As we all are aware, expense funds

         22  are always much more difficult for the City agencies

         23  to come by with many repeating needs and

         24  requirements. I am therefore requesting that DEP

         25  once again be permitted to utilize capital funds for
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          2  rehabilitation, the rehabilitation cleaning or

          3  reconstruction of these failing seepage basin wells,

          4  since they have become an integral component of the

          5  existing system.

          6                 We realize that the cleaning of these

          7  seepage basins is very problematic and subject to

          8  strict OSHA regulations and procedures.

          9                 However, it would be grossly unfair

         10  to Southeast Queens residents to ignore these

         11  structures and permit the recurrence of even more

         12  severe flooding, as they ultimately completely fail.

         13                 Today I am calling on DEP to

         14  accelerate and expand its investigations into

         15  additional non-drinking uses for excess groundwater,

         16  including additional draining options to help

         17  alleviate the rising water table.

         18                 We are all cognizant of the many

         19  important problems currently facing DEP. Each of

         20  these problems competing for the limited amount of

         21  available funds, funds for the new third water

         22  tunnel, funds for the long-range studies on how to

         23  deal with all the problems that we have,

         24  particularly since the rising groundwaters are

         25  affecting such a large area of Queens and having an
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          2  additional impact on the function of the existing

          3  sewer systems.

          4                 I would suggest that the City look

          5  into water retention system, now in Queens by our

          6  Queens Botanical Gardens, which it's really a

          7  state-of-the-art, up-to-date. I think if you haven't

          8  visited, it would be good for this Committee to take

          9  a view of what they're doing.

         10                 I also, at a meeting that we held in

         11  the office with Commissioner Lloyd about this

         12  problem a long time ago, maybe about six or seven

         13  months ago, I suggested that we also apply to FEMA.

         14  We need to apply to the federal government. This is

         15  a catastrophic problem and you see all new areas

         16  that even didn't have the problems before having

         17  these problems. We need some help. And, of course,

         18  our Brooklyn brothers and sisters are having a

         19  problem now too. But we need federal funds, and I

         20  think we should approach our Congressional

         21  Delegation and have them pursue this for us.

         22                 I'm delighted also that a public

         23  hearing, one public hearing is being scheduled for

         24  one area in our borough, and we have representatives

         25  here from that area. We have a large delegation back
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          2  here from Southeast Queens, and I have some pictures

          3  that they shared with me. I'd like to give them to

          4  the Sergeant-At-Arms to distribute among you, but we

          5  have to get them back, because I have to give them

          6  back their pictures, to see houses, automobiles

          7  completely covered with water. There's a lady here

          8  with nine feet of water in her basement, okay? So

          9  that we've had some very severe problems in our

         10  borough.

         11                 And in closing, I just want to thank

         12  this Committee, again, for holding this hearing, and

         13  I look forward to working with you to solve these

         14  major life problems in our borough.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Borough President Marshall. It was a pleasure

         18  working with you when you were a member of this

         19  Committee and I was a staff member, and the

         20  relationship continues.

         21                 I must tell you that I've learned

         22  more about seepage basins just reading your 14 pages

         23  of testimony, than I have in 17 years working with

         24  DEP in various capacities, as analyst to the

         25  Committee and Chairman of the Committee. I know more
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          2  about these seepage basins now from reading your

          3  testimony, so it's a new area of inquiry for me.

          4  Thank you very much. So that will be an area of

          5  inquiry for this Committee, because it's right along

          6  the Hillside Avenue corridor where they're doing the

          7  redevelopments, where we have a lot of old seepage

          8  basins. And I didn't realize that they had a useful

          9  life --

         10                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That they were

         12  coming to the end.

         13                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Yes, I

         14  wanted to say that's because the Borough Engineer of

         15  Queens worked for DEP, and he is a walking living

         16  encyclopedia about our entire sewer system.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, as you

         18  always do, Borough President, you bring people

         19  together. You give out information and bring people

         20  together in that extraordinary way.

         21                 And with regard to the people that

         22  the Borough President indicated were here from

         23  Southeast Queens, we have people, if you represent

         24  civic associations, we have people here from DEP,

         25  who will stay. I guess maybe Rick or someone like
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          2  that? Rick is in the back, Rick Muller, we could

          3  certainly coordinate some outreach to that area,

          4  have a local civic down there. You should get DEP to

          5  really focus on your specific issue, your specific

          6  pipes, places where you're hurting. And so you've

          7  done a good thing by coming to the hearing today.

          8  Talk to Rick. Talk to one of the other

          9  representatives from DEP. We still have the

         10  Commissioner here, which is unprecedented for a

         11  Commissioner, with her business schedule, to stay.

         12  So, we thank you, Commissioner, for doing that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Debbie Pucci is

         14  also here, and that's a good person to --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that name

         16  again?

         17                 COMMISSIONER LLOYD: Debbie Pucci.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Debbie Pucci, I

         19  believe I heard. Okay, Debbie is doing some of the

         20  outreach there. And, so, certainly we have a lot of

         21  good people from DEP still here who want to be of

         22  help.

         23                 Madam Borough President, is there any

         24  question --

         25                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: I just

                                                            96

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  want to just emphasize a point that Councilman

          3  Comrie made. We also need a meeting in Southeast

          4  Queens. The problem is, it's magnanimous, okay? And

          5  I am holding a meeting in my office, with

          6  Commissioner Lloyd and her top staff, to see what we

          7  can do from my level on helping the situation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. Great.

          9                 Well, Madam Borough President, thank

         10  you so much for being here. As always, Helen, it's

         11  always great to see you.

         12                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Okay, my

         13  pleasure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Tom, thanks a

         15  lot. Okay, the Honorable Archie Spigner.

         16                 Former Deputy Majority Leader of this

         17  body.

         18                 MR. SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         19  members of the Committee. I'm glad I came early and

         20  I learned a lot. It's been very enlightening, and

         21  you are to be commended for convening this

         22  Committee. This hearing. I'd like to thank my

         23  Councilman, who has done an outstanding job in

         24  giving leadership. It was comforting to see him

         25  together with some of his colleagues, and
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          2  Commissioner Lloyd on the corner of our community on

          3  the day of the storm. They didn't have back hoes or

          4  shovels or crystal balls, but it was still

          5  comforting to know that they were concerned enough

          6  to get out there.

          7                 I won't repeat a lot of the things

          8  that have been said. I can tell you that between the

          9  August 8th -- July 8th and August 18th, I had a

         10  backflow installed in my basement. It cost $1,200. I

         11  spoke to Assemblyman Lancman, where he was talking

         12  2,500 or 3,000. I want to put him in touch with --

         13  and it worked, because on the 19th of July, when I

         14  had three feet of water in my basement, I didn't get

         15  any backflow. So it did work. And you should know

         16  there is nothing more traumatic than seeing your

         17  belongings and your lifelong possessions floating in

         18  three or four feet of water. So, for those of you

         19  who haven't had that negative experience, I hope you

         20  don't.

         21                 The Commissioner has made a very

         22  comprehensive statement. You know the problem, the

         23  groundwater, the inadequate sewers, the inability of

         24  the area to absorb the water, it's just a very bad

         25  situation in Southeast Queens. I'm optimistic and
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          2  encouraged by the Commissioners' inclusion in her

          3  statement of the name "Southeast Queens"

          4  repetitively, because she understands what we are

          5  going through. So, I would just again thank you for

          6  what you've done and ask that you continue to keep

          7  the pressure on and keep this as a priority because

          8  there is nothing worse than getting a weather report

          9  -- if I get a weather report now that there is

         10  heavy rain, the neighborhood goes crazy because

         11  we're helpless in many instances.

         12                 So, on that note, I'll just conclude.

         13  So, thank you very much for your past support,

         14  looking forward to your leadership in solving this

         15  longstanding issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you, Mr. Spigner, Councilman Spigner. It's been

         18  wonderful working with you, and we're trying to

         19  attack it at two levels. We're trying to get DEP to

         20  come to the local communities because maybe there is

         21  some kind of local fix that might work over the

         22  short-term. Because even once you said for Southeast

         23  Queens --

         24                 MR. SPIGNER: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We expect this
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          2  build-out to be like ten and 20 years, I cringed a

          3  little bit, I'll be 70 by the time the sewers are in

          4  place.

          5                 MR. SPIGNER: At least you will be

          6  here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I don't

          8  know what Queens would do without your leadership.

          9  So, I don't want you going anywhere for a long time.

         10                 MR. SPIGNER: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, we want to

         12  approach it at the micro level and on the macro

         13  level through the budget to make sure that these

         14  things that are in the budget stay in the budget.

         15  So, with your institutional continuity that you

         16  bring to this issue, we know that you'll be a voice

         17  in this for a long time and will keep us honest,

         18  make sure this gets done sooner rather than later.

         19                 MR. SPIGNER: Thank you.

         20                 The Commissioner stated in 30 days

         21  she intends to issue some short range strategies

         22  that homeowners can use to survive these storms,

         23  these inevitable reoccurring tragedies.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Inevitable.

         25  Inevitable.
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          2                 MR. SPIGNER: And I also want to give

          3  recognition to Borough President Helen Marshall.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Absolutely.

          5                 MR. SPIGNER: She and her staff, Tom

          6  Companin and those good people, have certainly been

          7  very helpful to us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          9                 MR. SPIGNER: Thanks for this

         10  opportunity and we go forward to a solution.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet. Any

         12  time. You've got a free pass before this Committee

         13  any time you want.

         14                 MR. SPIGNER: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, you bet.

         16                 We have a question from Council

         17  Member Comrie.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I don't have a

         19  question. I just want to emphasize that Councilman

         20  Spigner, my predecessor, has given me many tools so

         21  that I have been able to understand the issues and

         22  work on the issues, but none has been more important

         23  than the sewer issue and his training and his

         24  understanding of a complex issue, that has enabled

         25  me to have a leg up when I first came in. I just
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          2  want to thank him. But you know, what's going on now

          3  is that even with the work that he's done and the

          4  fact that he had sewer work done, because of the

          5  overdevelopment in the areas, the natural drain-off

          6  areas that we used to have, the open lots are all

          7  gone. You know, every open lot is being built on,

          8  every house is being changed and people are adding

          9  extensions legally and legally we don't have the

         10  luxury that we had 30 years ago where we had natural

         11  run-off areas. So, clearly, his work in making sure

         12  that Jamaica Water was the system that was taken

         13  over by the City was a major part of ensuring that

         14  the level of purity of water for our residents was

         15  done, and I hope to, and I wish I had more time in

         16  the City Council and we didn't have term limits, so

         17  that I could be here by the time all the

         18  infrastructure was built out, but clearly we're

         19  going to be working harder over the next year and a

         20  half to make sure that at least this plan is in

         21  place so we can try to get some federal

         22  intervention. Because there is at least another $20

         23  billion in real build-outs for this to be done

         24  effectively, and I just want to thank my predecessor

         25  for continuing to advise me to make sure that I'm
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          2  trying to do the right thing for the community.

          3                 MR. SPIGNER: And I thank you. And

          4  thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of the

          5  Committee.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you,

          7  Archie.

          8                 Thank you, Council Member Comrie.

          9                 We're joined by Councilman Bill

         10  DeBlasio. We're happy to have you. Happy to have

         11  Bill here.

         12                 And next, moving along, we have a

         13  panel, James Gallagher and Greg Carlson. James

         14  Gallagher and Greg Carlson. Let's see, and I think,

         15  okay, if I divide the number of witnesses into the

         16  number of minutes we have left, I think, Sergeant,

         17  we're looking at the imposition, unfortunately,

         18  although I hate to do it, of the clock. And, so, I

         19  think we gotta do a three-minute clock. Is that

         20  okay? Sure.

         21                 Sorry, guys. So nice to have you both

         22  here. I have two Chairman coming into this room at

         23  1:00 and so unfortunately you'll have to do your

         24  good testimony in a relatively narrow window. That

         25  kind of goes for everyone who will be testifying.

                                                            103

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 And, so, am I ready here? Okay, Jim,

          3  why don't you go first, okay?

          4                 MR. GALLAGHER: Councilman, I want to

          5  thank you again. I want to applaud you for your

          6  effort of putting together this meeting. Again, I

          7  will be less than a minute, just to announce that we

          8  will have a general membership meeting of the people

          9  in First Meadows, the Fresh Meadow Homeowner Civic

         10  Association, on Wednesday, October 24th, at 8:00

         11  p.m., at the Utopia Jewish Center. You will be our

         12  guest speaker, along with representatives from DEP.

         13  I spoke to Deborah Pucci. And we're looking for a

         14  meeting, I hope, as Leroy, Councilman Comrie had

         15  said, a meeting for hope, not for frustration. And

         16  we're looking for solutions. And also, tomorrow is

         17  the budget consultation hearings at Borough Hall of

         18  the Environmental Committee, so I hope to have

         19  representation from the Environmental Committee down

         20  there.

         21                 Again, we want to thank you for all

         22  your efforts. And so proud that being a long-time

         23  member of the Environmental Committee we're having

         24  you there, and for you, Chairman, to cover our area.

         25                 It's a long-time problem we've had in
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          2  Fresh Meadows since 1954. I was born in the area in

          3  1950. I don't remember the one in 1954, but I do

          4  remember the floods in the sixties, the seventies,

          5  the eighties, the nineties, and I was almost as sure

          6  that this was not going to happen after we installed

          7  about 38 new catchbasins back in the year 1999,

          8  2000. Unfortunately, we have flooded again twice

          9  this summer, and hopefully never again.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you, Jim. I appreciate you being here and the

         12  leadership that you've given to the community, and

         13  you've got a great civic and a great bunch of

         14  residents there, and we've got to get you the relief

         15  which you so justly deserve. So, working together

         16  we'll get it done.

         17                 Thank you, Jim.

         18                 MR. GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I'm

         20  technologically challenged here, Greg. I can't get

         21  it right. How is that? Okay, great. Go ahead.

         22                 MR. CARLSON: Good day, Chairman

         23  Gennaro, Council members, staff.

         24                 My name is Gregory Carlson. Today I

         25  am here, I have many hats but today I am managing
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          2  agent of a 425 cooperative complex in Forest Hills,

          3  Queens. We're right on the border of the LIE and the

          4  Grand Central Parkway.

          5                 You see my written testimony before

          6  you, so in a matter of time I'll be quick.

          7                 We had a lot of damage, about

          8  $350,000 worth of damage to our building. The main

          9  problem that I have here is that we had seepage

         10  basins, and we've had them and with the former City

         11  Councilman Morty Povman, in seven years we finally

         12  were awarded a sewer system, and you could see the

         13  number in my written testimony, and what time is it?

         14  What year is this? It's been almost ten years since

         15  we've been awarded that major capital improvement

         16  and nothing has been done.

         17                 DEP --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You still have

         19  the seepage basins then?

         20                 MR. CARLSON: Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         22                 MR. CARLSON: DEP, after about five

         23  false start-ups, keeps on promising to start this

         24  project. It has not happened.

         25                 So what has happened is that we keep
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          2  on getting continuing flooding, and where they used

          3  to clean the seepage basins on the continuous basis,

          4  as time has been carrying on they're doing that less

          5  and less. So, that's becoming more of a horrific

          6  problem in our area.

          7                 So, I'll leave you with this one

          8  question. Why is the building and the surrounding

          9  area are paying full sewer rates when we're only

         10  getting half a loaf. We don't have a true storm

         11  drain system, but we are being charged sewer rates.

         12  My building's particular case runs into hundreds of

         13  thousands of dollars a year. And, you know, how many

         14  more times are we going to wait til I get people

         15  that are driven out of their homes? In fact, during

         16  the August 8th rainstorm, the police closed down the

         17  street. No one could leave. So, residents were

         18  prisoners in their homes because the water was so

         19  horrific.

         20                 And I would just urge that I hope DEP

         21  and the Design Engineering and Construction finally

         22  puts in the system, because too many people are

         23  cringing every time it rains.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, here's
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          2  what we're going to do on that, Greg. If I can

          3  direct Jeff Leb (phonetic), my Chief of Staff, if

          4  you could just, Greg, after you leave the witness

          5  table, go to see Mark Lanigan, the gentleman sitting

          6  right behind you over there, and maybe we can figure

          7  out when we can get this project into the pipe.

          8  Pardon the pun. So why don't you go and see Mark and

          9  see what you can find out. And Jeff, I'd like to

         10  find out what the result of this conversation is.

         11  Talk to DEP right now and let's see what we can do.

         12                 And Jeff, who also is my budget guy,

         13  Jeff, this will be one of my budget priorities as

         14  well.

         15                 Okay, so why don't you go and see

         16  Mark Lanigan, okay?

         17                 Thank you, gentlemen. Thank you for

         18  the leadership that you provide to your various

         19  constituencies, and thanks for coming here today.

         20                 Next we have a panel of some

         21  residents, Elsa Suarez-Mejia, it looks like. Jill

         22  Bauman, Annette Markim. So, we have the panel of

         23  three residents of Fresh Meadows. And that will be

         24  followed by the final panel of Paul Mankiewicz,

         25  Craig Michaels and Kate Zidar.
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          2                 Elsa, this is from you, right? Okay,

          3  why don't we start with you.

          4                 MS. SUAREZ-MEJIA: My name is Elsa

          5  Squarez-Mejia, and I am a resident of Fresh Meadows.

          6  First of all, thank you all for holding this meeting

          7  and for making the flooding of the Fresh Meadows

          8  area a central issue of discussion today.

          9                 Your listening is the beginning step

         10  of correcting a problem that is long-lasting and the

         11  cause of much suffering and pain.

         12                 I am presenting a petition on behalf

         13  of the community, which I handed to you, Mr.

         14  Chairman, allow me to read just one line from it.

         15                 It says, "Please see that the sewer

         16  system in our community is updated with larger and

         17  appropriate pipes."

         18                 I am also including in that packet

         19  with this petition, another petition that I happen

         20  to be involved in back in 1999. On my round, and

         21  other members of the Committee have had petitions

         22  made prior to that 1999 one, on my rounds to let

         23  people know about this meeting, I have felt the

         24  pain, the anger and the suffering of the community

         25  whose oldest residents report floods dating back to
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          2  1954. I ask how long does the community need to

          3  suffer before a problem is eradicated?

          4                 It is not just a matter of heavy

          5  rains, the entire world gets heavy rains, not just

          6  the residents of Fresh Meadows. Other communities do

          7  not get flooded. Even Florida being below sea level

          8  and getting huge tropical rains often has learned to

          9  deal with heavy rains.

         10                 The problem in the Fresh Meadows area

         11  is much more than heavy rain. It is quite clear that

         12  the sewer system in the area is inadequate. The

         13  installation of the catchbasins has alleviated the

         14  problem for the past eight years. But now the

         15  community resumes the issue at a greater intensity

         16  in 2007.

         17                 First of all, the catchbasins are

         18  only cleaned at the request of the residents.

         19                 Second of all, we have become aware

         20  of problems in certain catchbasins. For example, the

         21  northwest corner of Utopia and 68th Avenue, the hood

         22  was placed upside down and was corrected recently.

         23                 The southwest corner of Utopia and

         24  68th Avenue, a DEP employee admitted the catchbasin

         25  needed repairs beyond his ability. He removed the
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          2  hood and left it on the sidewalk. Someone driving by

          3  took the hood and the catchbasin was left without a

          4  hood.

          5                 A neighbor who saw this happen called

          6  DEP and reported the incident. Another DEP employee

          7  who came to check looked at the railing, through the

          8  railing, rather, and called the catchbasin good and

          9  left it alone. Besides that catchbasin, that very

         10  same corner has a sewer that is two feet deep,

         11  instead of nine feet deep.

         12                 May I please?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm going to ask

         14  you, this, you should know, this is information

         15  that's going to be sort of more useful at the local

         16  level on October 24th in the thing. So, if you

         17  conclude now, that would be great.

         18                 MS. SUAREZ-MEJIA: Okay. I hear that

         19  Jamaica States has been upgraded with a larger sewer

         20  system. Their pipes, which are larger than ours,

         21  empty into ours which are smaller. No need to say

         22  that the larger doesn't fit into the smaller.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: At the local

         24  meeting is where these real sort of retail issues

         25  can get their sort of best attention, because you'll
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          2  be talking right to the people in DEP. I'll be

          3  sitting there, and I'll demand that you get answers

          4  on the spot for that.

          5                 MS. SUAREZ-MEJIA: Okay. Just to

          6  close, but I have more. To any of you who never

          7  suffered from a flood, the announcement of rain in

          8  the weather forecast is just the signal to get an

          9  umbrella on the way out of your house. But to the

         10  residents of the Fresh Meadows' community, the

         11  announcement of rain in the day's forecast is a

         12  threat, a threat that we will get flooded again, a

         13  threat that on our way back home from work we will

         14  have another job, the filthy job of emptying our

         15  homes of sewer water. And I'm told about four, five

         16  feet and more.

         17                 I have pictures and you will see.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Sorry to hurry you along. You've been

         21  very, very patient. You've been here all day, but

         22  I'm under a time deadline, you have three more

         23  witnesses after this panel.

         24                 MS. MARKIM: Mr. Chairman, if I can

         25  just interject?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Why don't we go

          3  to Jill next, okay?

          4                 MS. BAUMAN: Okay. I'm not going to

          5  take up your time. I'm going to thank you for

          6  inviting us to come down here. I rent, I don't own

          7  the home, but I'm certainly witness to everything

          8  that has been said, and it comforts me to know that

          9  the few phone calls I made at first were, well, this

         10  is an act of God, but now you know there is a larger

         11  problem. My car, which is a Honda Civic, in front of

         12  my house, there is a sewer in front of my car, so

         13  what happened, of course, the sewage went up into my

         14  car. It has a putrid smell, and it was drowned. But

         15  I spent money to dry this car out. It took a week

         16  and a half, and my daughter's Volkswagon Beetle

         17  didn't have a chance in this one. But a neighbor

         18  down the block, on Sixth -- between 65th and 66th on

         19  Utopia, took these pictures of a school bus that was

         20  stopped in its tracks. There is a school bus there

         21  and you see cars up to the top.

         22                 So, we have a lot of photographs,

         23  physical proof, and now I'm comforted just to know

         24  that you are aware, and I do appreciate it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MS. BAUMAN: One note I do have to

          3  make. The Sanitation Department has to be commended.

          4  The supervisors came around and told all the

          5  residents to put out everything and anything and

          6  they will take it that day, and they did. So, we

          7  have to give credit where credit is due. They were

          8  marvelous.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Jill.

         10                 MS. BAUMAN: So, if you all do as

         11  equal a job, we're okay. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Jill.

         13  I appreciate that. Thank you for your brevity. And

         14  please bring it to the meeting we'll have on the

         15  24th.

         16                 MS. BAUMAN: I'll bring that to the

         17  meeting. It belongs to another resident, so I'll

         18  bring this as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         20                 MS. BAUMAN: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Annette.

         22                 MS. MARKIM: I want to thank you very

         23  much for the effort you're putting into this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         25  speak a little louder.
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          2                 MS. MARKIM: I want to thank you for

          3  the effort that you are putting, all of you are

          4  putting into this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          6                 MS. MARKIM: Because it's been very,

          7  very traumatic. Exceptionally so.

          8                 I, too, lost a brand new car. And my

          9  house has now turned into a junkyard. That's exactly

         10  what it is, and the smell is awful. It's making me

         11  sick, and I've now become an insomniac because I

         12  can't sleep. The smell is disgusting. FEMA came to

         13  my house and insulted me. Instead of paying me for a

         14  new boiler, which I installed, they said that I fix

         15  my boiler, so I'm not accepting their $2,100 check.

         16  I'm going to fight it. I'm disgusted. Absolutely

         17  disgusted. They're not paying me for anything. My

         18  entire basement has to be redone. The doors. The

         19  front doors, the back doors. Thousands of dollars in

         20  clothes and shoes and foods, it's ruined, and my

         21  house literally looks like a junkyard.

         22                 And this is very bad for the real

         23  estate value of my house. Very, very bad. Because

         24  people know Fresh Meadows is a flood area. But all

         25  I've heard is South Queens. This is all I've heard
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          2  is South Queens.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. As

          4  you're speaking I'm just looking around for my Chief

          5  of Staff Jeff Leb because I want him to get the

          6  details of this information so that we can intercede

          7  with FEMA. They shouldn't be insulting constituents,

          8  they shouldn't be making allegations.

          9                 MS. MARKIM: I mean, it's disgusting.

         10  And I called the next day, they say fight it, you

         11  know, appeal it. But they have on record I fixed the

         12  boiler, and I have the bill.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Here's what

         14  we're going to do, Annette. Right after you leave

         15  the witness stand, you talk to Jeff Leb. We'll

         16  interact with FEMA and see if we can kick them in

         17  the fanny a little bit and let them be a little more

         18  responsive and a little more respectful. How's that?

         19                 MS. MARKIM: I would appreciate that

         20  greatly. And I know that your entire staff and you

         21  are going to help us, because years ago we were

         22  promised and nothing was done. You know --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: One more thing.

         24  One more thing. I also need you to come on October

         25  24th to the community meeting.
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          2                 MS. MARKIM: I will do my best. I will

          3  do my best.

          4                 I just want to make you aware, I'm

          5  sure you are, there are no catchbasins on 67th

          6  Avenue, going down towards Utopia. And that's what

          7  happens, and all the water goes into the valley

          8  which is Utopia Parkway. And I just spoke with a

          9  gentleman, the engineer, he said that should have

         10  been done years ago, and it was not, and still we

         11  don't have the catchbasins.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I need you to

         13  bear witness to that on October 24th.

         14                 MS. MARKIM: Okay, I will do my best.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay?

         16                 MS. MARKIM: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

         18                 MS. MARKIM: And thank you, again.

         19  You're very kind, and I greatly appreciate your

         20  efforts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's my job. I

         22  get paid handsomely to do this.

         23                 MS. MARKIM: I know. But, listen, no

         24  one did it before. You're making the effort, and

         25  that's what I'm appreciative of.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Well,

          3  Annette, Jill, Elsa, a pleasure. A pleasure.

          4                 MS. MARKIM: Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, you bet.

          6                 And our final panel, which gets the

          7  patience award, my good friend Paul Mankiewicz,

          8  Craig Michaels, from RiverKeeper, and Kate Zidar,

          9  Youth Ministries for Peace and Justice.

         10                 Thank you, all. Thank you, all, for

         11  being so patient. After you leave the witness table,

         12  we have the patience awards for you, whatever. Jeff

         13  can provide those to you.

         14                 Okay, why don't we do ladies first,

         15  is that okay? Why don't we do ladies, first.

         16                 MS. ZIDAR: I think this one is on?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         18                 MS. ZIDAR: Thank you very much for

         19  the opportunity to speak. I am Kate Zidar. I am from

         20  Youth Ministries for Peace and Justice. We're a

         21  community development organization in the Bronx, and

         22  here today to just talk briefly about the Stormwater

         23  Management Project that's very affordable that we've

         24  been doing on our site. Actually there is a few of

         25  them that we've been trying out in our neighborhood.
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          2  I want to talk briefly about that. And I also want

          3  to also represent the Coalition that I work with,

          4  the Stormwater Infrastructure Matters Coalition.

          5  It's a Citywide group of water quality advocates who

          6  become vocal on issues of stormwater management for

          7  the purpose of controlling combined sewer overflow,

          8  as some people here are familiar with.

          9                 But you know, our goals definitely

         10  with stormwater management work double-time in flood

         11  prevention as well. So, I just would like to kind of

         12  briefly talk about our platform.

         13                 We advocate for Uplands Stormwater

         14  Controls, the BMPs that Commissioner Lloyd spoke

         15  about earlier, those things include, you know,

         16  larger tree pits, screen roofs, rain gardens, which

         17  I'll talk about in a moment. And basically

         18  utilizing, getting stormwater into the soil, and out

         19  of the pipe. You know, sewage is very effectively

         20  treated by a sewage treatment plant. Stormwater

         21  doesn't necessarily need to be so costly, to have

         22  such a costly mechanism for disposal. And it's

         23  actually a resource. It's something that could be

         24  utilized by, you know, to green the City and to

         25  provide multiple benefits.
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          2                 So, that's just kind of the brief.

          3                 But definitely we've heard today that

          4  our, you know, our sewer overflow issues overlap

          5  quite concretely. It's kind of an interesting term.

          6  It's like Bushwick and Flushing where they are the

          7  drainage areas for a very problematic CSO area,

          8  they're also experiencing flooding. So, these goals

          9  definitely do geographically overlap.

         10                 At Youth Ministries we've recently

         11  implemented on our site with teenagers a rain barrel

         12  to take the water off our garage, and over two days

         13  last week we installed a rain garden. And we hope to

         14  basically alleviate flooding in our own basement.

         15                 Our problems are local. We're not in

         16  a flood zone. But we are able to effectively with a

         17  budget of roughly $500, prevent our own basement

         18  from flooding. And we would just encourage this

         19  Committee to support such efforts on a drainage area

         20  scale, on a CSO shed scale, on a neighborhood scale,

         21  that could very, very affordably and effectively

         22  basically prevent flooding while providing amenities

         23  like extra non-potable water to water your back yard

         24  instead of using drinking water. Vegetation, that

         25  would also help clean the air, and restore natural
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          2  ecosystems here. These are all, you know, goals of

          3  PlaNYC and, you know, DEP and other agencies in the

          4  City. So, we invite everybody up to the Bronx and to

          5  let our teenagers teach you how to do it. It really

          6  is that simple. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Kate.

          8  I'll save all my questions or comments until the

          9  entire panel has spoken.

         10                 Paul. Paul.

         11                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Paul Mankiewicz from

         12  the Gaia Institute, New York City Soil and Water

         13  Conservation District.

         14                 The problem in front of us is quite

         15  large. As you noted, the City's infrastructure is

         16  quite large, and the issues really are finding areas

         17  to capture water, but then the other issue, as

         18  Southeast Queens points out very clearly, how to

         19  move water back out of the ground, out of our

         20  storage areas all together.

         21                 The Mayor's plan to plant a million

         22  trees is a spectacularly good idea. If you enhance

         23  the tree pits with these relatively simple recycled

         24  plastic structures I'm using now along the Bronx

         25  River on the CIMS property, you can capture about
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          2  2,000 gallons per tree pit. You put that times a

          3  million trees, that's 2 billion gallons of water, a

          4  tenth of our combined sewer each year, that, of

          5  course, placement is everything, where you put it

          6  will make a huge difference. I'll be very brief

          7  here, but literally every acre of ballfield, every

          8  acre of parking lot, has a capacity to capture

          9  something like a million gallons of water below

         10  grade, and that, again, placement is everything in

         11  Southeast Queens and elsewhere, one could literally

         12  make a difference with those kinds of structures.

         13                 I'll end with a very simple approach.

         14  Southeast Queens, you're going to have to look at

         15  piping and infrastructure of all kinds, but the

         16  other side of this storage and the way to open the

         17  storage up is literally by enhancing the property

         18  values by putting in tree plantings once again.

         19                 About eight blocks of street tree

         20  plantings could move about an acre foot of water in

         21  a week or two. So, something like 330,000 gallons of

         22  water, out of the water table, into the atmosphere,

         23  making room for the next storm. And I'm going to say

         24  that besides increasing the property value, besides

         25  dropping air conditioning costs by literally one
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          2  percent for every degree Fahrenheit you got the

          3  temperature, which those trees would do, you would

          4  also basically make room for stormwater capture

          5  between storms.

          6                 I'll finish this testimony up and

          7  e-mail it to you all together, but basically it's a

          8  catchment and water loss capacity that need to be

          9  moved together.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you, Paul. I appreciate that.

         12                 Okay, Craig. Craig, thank you. What

         13  would we do without RiverKeeper?

         14                 MR. MICHAELS: Thanks for having me

         15  here.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         17                 MR. MICHAELS: I'm here testifying on

         18  behalf of RiverKeeper, and RiverKeeper is also part

         19  of the Swim Coalition. I'll cut right to the chase,

         20  since most of it has already been said.

         21                 It takes on one-twentieth of an inch

         22  of rain to overload the New York City sewerage

         23  system, which, of course, combines sewerage from the

         24  buildings with the stormwater on our streets. And

         25  historically DEP has focused its efforts primarily
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          2  on very expensive end of pipe controls, while more

          3  cost effective source control approaches, that Kate

          4  and Paul just discussed, which are designed to keep

          5  stormwater out of the sewer system, those have been

          6  largely ignored.

          7                 And if you look at the, you know,

          8  there is a massive imbalance in terms of spending,

          9  with hundreds of millions of dollars going towards

         10  end of pipe solutions and virtually no budget

         11  resource control technologies.

         12                 And the overarching problem with the

         13  end of pipe approach is that floods happen at the

         14  source when the rain hits the streets. So, spending

         15  millions on end-of-pipe improvements, it's really

         16  just a bandaid and it certainly doesn't help

         17  residents in areas prone to flooding.

         18                 Now, fortunately, I think source

         19  control technologies are starting to get the

         20  attention they deserve. You heard Commissioner Lloyd

         21  here today talk about the DEP is starting to look

         22  into them, and Mayor Bloomberg's PlaNYC calls for an

         23  interagency task force, which is focusing on how and

         24  where best management practices can be implemented.

         25  And I won't go into BMPs because they've sort of
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          2  been talked about all morning. But it's important to

          3  know that the source control systems and BMPs work.

          4  And they've been working in cities all across the

          5  country, in Chicago, Milwaukee, Pittsburgh,

          6  Portland, Seattle, Washington, D.C. And so, in

          7  addition to implementing source controls, the City

          8  needs to ensure that new developments are required

          9  to implement no net stormwater runoff designs.

         10                 Our streets and buildings can and

         11  should be greener and the City should be investing

         12  in more environmentally sustainable designs.

         13                 And I just think the leaders of the

         14  City owe it to the local residents to start thinking

         15  differently about stormwater. In fact, the MTA

         16  report that was issued last week, recommended a

         17  broad systematic approach in order to avoid future

         18  flooding problems. And the report noted that many of

         19  these changes require a change in the institutional

         20  culture to include a range of professions and

         21  stakeholders involved in the planning and decision

         22  process.

         23                 And the report urges that costs and

         24  benefits be analyzed in not only monetary terms but

         25  also in terms of environmental and community
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          2  sustainability.

          3                 So, obviously, you have a big

          4  challenge ahead of you and I think, you know, I just

          5  urge the Council to stay on the DEP to make sure

          6  that all the agencies are working together to

          7  address this problem because it's not going away and

          8  it's just going to keep getting worse.

          9                 So, thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 I want to thank all of you for, not

         12  only what you did today right here, but you've been

         13  coming to my Committee, you've been testifying,

         14  we've tried to be champions here of BMPs, and I was

         15  fortunate to serve on the Mayor's Sustainability

         16  Advisory Committee, I still serve on there. And I

         17  was there, Dan Avery, who I neglected to mention

         18  thus far in the hearing, was there for all of the

         19  meetings and all of the little sub-meetings and

         20  sub-sub-meetings, and we really have been beaten the

         21  band on the BMP issue with sustainability. So, there

         22  are some things about BMPs in PlaNYC, but there is

         23  more that is going to be coming from this Committee.

         24  I'll just leave it at that for now, because we've

         25  got some work to do, but you guys are certainly part
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          2  of that, and we're going to need you more than ever

          3  once we try to push this forward. Because they're

          4  talking about how they want to do a better job of

          5  being green and using BMPs and we're going to really

          6  push the envelope on that. And we're going to need

          7  some back up on that. That's where you guys come in.

          8                 So, if you'll have my back on that,

          9  I'll use you for that.

         10                 Paul, with regard to your tree pits,

         11  have you had conversations with the Parks Department

         12  or whatever on that?

         13                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         15  put your mic. on.

         16                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: I have. We're looking

         17  at a number of green streets, actually retrofitting

         18  them so they catch water both on the surface --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         20                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: -- But also below low

         21  grade.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

         23  make sure your idea is being put to good use. I've

         24  got a very good relationship with the Parks

         25  Department, generally, with Adrian Benepe
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          2  specifically, and I've done a lot of -- well, a lot

          3  of Council members have done a lot of tree planting,

          4  and he's, you know, admired our efforts that we done

          5  a lot in Queens. Leroy, me, the other Queens Council

          6  members, we plant a lot of trees out there and we

          7  support parks quite a bit and we want to make sure

          8  that all your good ideas are being used.

          9                 And Kate, thank you for the invite to

         10  come up to Youth Ministries for Peace and Justice.

         11                 MS. ZIDAR: You can go for a canoe

         12  ride on the Bronx River.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that?

         14                 MS. ZIDAR: We offer canoe rides on

         15  the Bronx River.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In the middle of

         17  winter do you do it, too?

         18                 MS. ZIDAR: Oh, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In the middle of

         20  winter? Okay. We'll do a special mid-winter canoe

         21  for the robust.

         22                 Kate, thank you for really working at

         23  the absolute grassroots level for encouraging the

         24  next generation of environmental warriors, reaching

         25  out to the school kids. You know, your kind of
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          2  grassroots really does do a lot to get the young

          3  people involved, and that's what we're going to

          4  need, you know, to really see this through over the

          5  long term.

          6                 So, thank you, all, very much for

          7  being here.

          8                 And Leroy Comrie has a question or a

          9  comment.

         10                 Leroy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just an

         12  inquiry more than anything else.

         13                 If you could e-mail my office the

         14  details on those projects? I'm learning about this

         15  BMP and I'm curious to know if this below-ground

         16  drainage will work in my community? I represent

         17  Southeast Queens. I'm not sure, but I'm very

         18  interested to get the details on everything that

         19  you've presented today.

         20                 So, if you could e-mail it to my

         21  office, as well. Because to hear that you can do

         22  water runoff for $500 is, I've got to figure that

         23  out. So, I need some details on that.

         24                 Thank you very much. Thank you for

         25  being here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I want to thank

          3  this panel. I want to thank you, Leroy. I want to

          4  thank Dan. I want to thank everyone who came here

          5  from the community, who gave up a day to be here to

          6  participate. Not everyone came up to testify, but

          7  you wanted to be here, you wanted to be supportive

          8  of your community.

          9                 For those in my community, we'll see

         10  you all on October 24th for the local follow-up,

         11  where people can come from other communities. You

         12  could always work with Leroy and with the people

         13  from, good people from DEP. We got to get the people

         14  from DEP on the ground in your community. We

         15  promised to bring that to you.

         16                 I just want to thank in a special way

         17  the clock, which stopped, because it knew that I had

         18  to be here at 1:00, so it did me the favor of

         19  stopping at 17 minutes before 1:00. It stopped. The

         20  pendulum is moving but it stopped. It's after 1:00

         21  now. It's two minutes after, but the clock says a

         22  quarter to 1:00 over there. The clock, it wasn't

         23  that slow to begin with.

         24                 No, no, no, not that clock, the big

         25  clock. All right. Okay, we'll straighten out these

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  clock issues. Okay, with no one else wishing to be

          3  heard, this hearing is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 1:02 p.m.)
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